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METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY BOARD RULES
(ALSO APPLIES TO BOARD COMMITTEES)

PUBLIC INPUT

A member of the public may address the Board on agenda items, before or during the Board or
Committee’s consideration of the item for one (1) minute per item, or at the discretion of the Chair. A
request to address the Board should be submitted in person at the meeting to the Board Secretary.
Individuals requesting to speak on more than three (3) agenda items will be allowed to speak up to a
maximum of three (3) minutes per meeting. For individuals requiring translation service, time allowed will
be doubled.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and in accordance with the Brown Act, this agenda does not provide an
opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any Consent Calendar agenda item that
has already been considered by a Committee, composed exclusively of members of the Board, at a
public meeting wherein all interested members of the public were afforded the opportunity to address the
Committee on the item, before or during the Committee’s consideration of the item, and which has not
been substantially changed since the Committee heard the item.

The public may also address the Board on non-agenda items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Board during the public comment period, which will be held at the beginning and/or end of each meeting.
Each person will be allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes per meeting and may speak no more
than once during the Public Comment period. Speakers will be called according to the order in which
the speaker request forms are received. Elected officials, not their staff or deputies, may be called out of
order and prior to the Board’s consideration of the relevant item.

In accordance with State Law (Brown Act), all matters to be acted on by the MTA Board must be posted
at least 72 hours prior to the Board meeting. In case of emergency, or when a subject matter arises
subsequent to the posting of the agenda, upon making certain findings, the Board may act on an item
that is not on the posted agenda.

CONDUCT IN THE BOARD ROOM - The following rules pertain to conduct at Metropolitan
Transportation Authority meetings:

REMOVAL FROM THE BOARD ROOM The Chair shall order removed from the Board Room any
person who commits the following acts with respect to any meeting of the MTA Board:

a. Disorderly behavior toward the Board or any member of the staff thereof, tending to interrupt the due
and orderly course of said meeting.

b. A breach of the peace, boisterous conduct or violent disturbance, tending to interrupt the due and
orderly course of said meeting.

c. Disobedience of any lawful order of the Chair, which shall include an order to be seated or to refrain
from addressing the Board; and

d. Any other unlawful interference with the due and orderly course of said meeting.

INFORMATION RELATING TO AGENDAS AND ACTIONS OF THE BOARD

Agendas for the Regular MTA Board meetings are prepared by the Board Secretary and are available
prior to the meeting in the MTA Records Management Department and on the Internet. Every meeting of
the MTA Board of Directors is recorded on CD’s and as MP3’s and can be made available for a nominal
charge.




DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

The State Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 84308) requires that a party to a proceeding
before an agency involving a license, permit, or other entittement for use, including all contracts (other
than competitively bid, labor, or personal employment contracts), shall disclose on the record of the
proceeding any contributions in an amount of more than $250 made within the preceding 12 months by
the party, or his or her agent, to any officer of the agency, additionally PUC Code Sec. 130051.20
requires that no member accept a contribution of over ten dollars ($10) in value or amount from a
construction company, engineering firm, consultant, legal firm, or any company, vendor, or business
entity that has contracted with the authority in the preceding four years. Persons required to make this
disclosure shall do so by filling out a "Disclosure of Contribution" form which is available at the LACMTA
Board and Committee Meetings. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the assessment
of civil or criminal penalties.

ADA REQUIREMENTS

Upon request, sign language interpretation, materials in alternative formats and other accommodations
are available to the public for MTA-sponsored meetings and events. All requests for reasonable
accommodations must be made at least three working days (72 hours) in advance of the scheduled
meeting date. Please telephone (213) 922-4600 between 8 a.m. and 5p.m., Monday through Friday.
Our TDD line is (800) 252-9040.

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY
A Spanish language interpreter is available at all Board Meetings. Interpreters for Committee meetings

and all other languages must be requested 72 hours in advance of the meeting by calling (213) 922-4600
or (323) 466-3876.

323.466.3876 x2

Espariol

323.466.3876 x3
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HELPFUL PHONE NUMBERS

Copies of Agendas/Record of Board Action/Recordings of Meetings - (213) 922-4880 (Records
Management Department)

General Information/Rules of the Board - (213) 922-4600

Internet Access to Agendas - www.metro.net

TDD line (800) 252-9040

NOTE: ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA




Finance, Budget and Audit Committee Agenda - Final

May 16, 2018

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVE Consent Calendar Item(s): 8.

Consent Calendar Iltems are approved with one motion unless held by a Director for

discussion and/or separate action.

CONSENT CALENDAR

SUBJECT: FASHION BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE Metro’s participation in the Fashion Business Improvement District
(“BID” or “District”) for a period of eight years beginning January 1, 2019 to
December 31, 2026 for an estimated total amount of $793,400.

Attachments: Attachment A — BID Benefit Boundaries

Attachment B — Map of Proposed BID Boundaries

Attachment C — Evaluation of BID Benefits to Metro

Attachment D - Metro Owned Parcels in BID and Eight-Year Costs

Attachment E — BID Guidelines

NON-CONSENT

9.

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2019 (FY19) BUDGET

RECOMMENDATION

CONSIDER:

A. ADOPTING the proposed FY19 Budget as presented in the budget
document (provided in a separate transmittal and posted on metro.net);
and

B. APPROVING the Life of Project (LOP) budgets for new capital projects
with LOP exceeding $5 million, included in the proposed FY19 Budget and
presented in Attachment A; and

C. APPROVING the Reimbursement Resolution declaring Metro’s intention to
issue debt in FY19 for capital projects, as shown in Attachment B, with the
provision that actual debt issuance will require separate Board approval;
and
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D. AMEND the proposed budget to include $2,000,000 for Expo Phase 1 and
$20,624,400 for Expo Phase 2, as approved by Expo Construction
Authority for fiscal year 2019, for a total addition of $22,624,400; and

E. AMEND the proposed budget to include $25,000,000 for farebox upgrade,
as approved by the Board on April 18, 2018; and

F. AMEND the proposed budget to include $500,000 to begin the draft
environmental study of the Crenshaw Northern Extension project upon
identification of the preferred alternatives identified by the Board for this

corridor
Attachments: Attachment A - FY19 New Capital Projects
Attachment B — Reimbursement Resolution of Metro for FY19
Attachment C — FY19 Public Outreach
SUBJECT: BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND COMPONENT
AUDITS
RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE AND FILE the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority’s (Metro) basic financial statements and component financial
statement audits completed by Crowe Horwath LLP (Crowe) for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2017.

Attachments:

Attachment A - Management Letter

Attachment B - SAS 114
Attachment C - Single Audit Report
Attachment D - FY17 90154 NTD
Attachment E - FY17 TDA OPS
Attachment F - FY17 TDA Prop 1B
Attachment G - STA FY17
Attachment H - FY17 FR_CPC
Attachment | - SAFE FY17
Attachment J - LCTOP
Attachment K - Single Audit 2015
Attachment L - Single Audit 2016
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11. SUBJECT: MAJOR CONSTRUCTION UMBRELLA INSURANCE 2017-0702
PROGRAM
RECOMMENDATION
AUTHORIZE the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate and purchase additional
construction project umbrella liability insurance policies (also known as a super
excess general liability insurance program) for construction of the Metro
Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project (the Project) with up to $300
million in additional limits at a cost not to exceed $4.9 million for the period
effective June 6, 2017 to June 6, 2027 (and products/completed operations
coverage to June 6, 2037).
Attachments: Attachment A - Recommended Program
12. SUBJECT: MANAGEMENT AUDIT SERVICES FY 2018 THIRD 2018-0169
QUARTER REPORT
RECOMMENDATION
RECEIVE AND FILE the third quarter report of Management Audit Services
(Management Audit) for the period ending March 31, 2018.
Attachments: Attachment A - FY18 Third Quarter Report
SUBJECT: GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 2018-0311

Consideration of items not on the posted agenda, including: items to be presented and (if

Receive GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

requested) referred to staff; items to be placed on the agenda for action at a future meeting of the

Committee or Board; and/or items requiring immediate action because of an emergency

situation or where the need to take immediate action came to the attention of the Committee
subsequent to the posting of the agenda.

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON ITEMS OF PUBLIC INTEREST WITHIN COMMITTEE’S

SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION

Adjournment
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FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: FASHION BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ACTION: APPROVE RECOMMENDATION

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE Metro’s participation in the Fashion Business Improvement District (“BID” or “District”) for
a period of eight years beginning January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2026 for an estimated total
amount of $793,400.

ISSUE

Metro is being asked to sign a petition confirming the inclusion of four Metro-owned properties in the
BID’s defined assessment area (see Attachments A & B). Metro’s four parcels are: three which
comprise the Division 2 Bus Facility; and one which has an independently-owned parking garage with
a bus layover for Metro’s use on the first floor (see Attachment D for additional detail). Participation
in the Fashion BID will provide special benefits to these four Metro properties. Metro has participated
in the Fashion BID since its inception in January 1996 through 2018.

DISCUSSION

The goals of the District are to:
e improve the safety of each individual parcel within the District;
increase building occupancy and lease rates;
encourage new business development;
increase mass-transit ridership thereby attracting more customers to businesses; and
attract ancillary businesses and services for parcels within the District.

Establishment of the BID is a two-step process that includes (1) submission of favorable petitions
from property owners representing more than 50% of total assessments to be paid; and (2) return of
mail ballots evidencing a majority of ballots cast in favor of the assessment. Ballots are weighted by
each property owner’s assessment as proportionate to the total proposed District assessment
amount.

Metro has supported the formation of BIDs when the service or improvements provide a direct benefit
to Metro properties, employees, and customers. Under Proposition 218, the assessing agency that
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proposes an assessment identifies all parcels that will receive a special benefit. The special benefit
for each parcel is determined by: (1) the relationship of the capital cost of a public improvement; (2)
the maintenance and operation of a public improvement; or (3) the cost of the property-related
services being provided. No assessment can be imposed on any parcel that exceeds the reasonable
cost of the proportional special benefit on that parcel. All publicly-owned parcels are required to pay
their proportional share of costs based on the special benefits conferred to those individual parcels.
Only special benefits are assessable. The BID considers the special benefit to government-
assessed parcels to be an increase in District customers, an increased likelihood of attracting and
retaining employees that follows from having a cleaner and safer area, increased use of the public
facilities, and increased attraction to the neighborhood. Proposition 218 provides that parcels within
a district that are owned or used by any agency “...shall not be exempt from assessment unless the
agency can demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that the property will receive no benefit”.

The Metro Board adopted the Guidelines on Metro Participation in Proposed Assessment Districts
(“Guidelines”, see Attachment E) in June 1998. The Guidelines require staff to analyze each
assessment district based on whether it provides a benefit to Metro properties, facilities, Metro
employees, and/or Metro’s passengers, or reduce costs for the agency. Staff is to provide the Board
with an analysis, on a case-by-case basis, that determines whether Metro property benefits from the
proposed services or improvements; and whether the benefit to the property exceeds the cost of the
assessment. An evaluation of the Fashion BID’s benefits to Metro is attached (see Attachment C).

Description of BID

The Fashion District BID will have an eight (8) year life beginning January 1, 2019 and ending
December 31, 2026. The BID Steering Committee collectively determines the programs and priorities
for improvements within BID’s boundaries and are administered by professional management.

Safe Team Program

The Safety Program will provide safety services for the individual parcels located within the District in
the form of patrolling bicycle personnel, walking patrols and night vehicle patrols. The purpose of the
Safe Team Program is to prevent, deter, and report illegal activities taking place on the streets,
sidewalks, storefronts, parking lots and public alleys. The presence of the Safe Team Program is
intended to deter such illegal activities as vandalism, graffiti, narcotic use or sales, public urination,
trespassing, drinking in public, prostitution, illegal panhandling, unpermitted vending, and illegal
dumping. The Program will supplement, not replace, other ongoing police, security and patrol efforts
within the District. The Safe Team Program will only provide its services within the District
boundaries. The special benefit to parcels from these services is increased commercial activity
which directly relates to increases in lease rates and customer usage. A District that is perceived as
unsafe deters pedestrian and commercial activity.

Clean Team Program

To consistently deal with matters of cleanliness, a Clean Program will be provided as it has for the
last twenty-one years. Uniformed, radio-equipped personnel sweep litter, debris and refuse from
sidewalks and gutters for the assessed parcels in the District. Paper signs and handbills that are
taped or glued on property, utility boxes, poles, and telephones are removed. District personnel
pressure wash sidewalks. Collector truck personnel collect trash from sidewalk trash receptacles.
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Graffiti removal is affected by painting, using solvent and pressure washing. The District maintains a
zero-tolerance graffiti policy. An effort is made to remove all graffiti within 24 hours on weekdays.
Clean sidewalks support an increase in commerce and provide a special benefit to each individually-
assessed parcel in the district. The Clean Team will only provide service to properties within the BID’s
boundaries.

Communication

To communicate the changes that are taking place in the BID and to enhance the positive perception
of the BID’s parcels, a professionally developed marketing and communication program has been
created to improve the positive perception of the BID.

Management
The improvements and activities are managed by a professional staff that requires centralized

administrative support. Management oversees the District’s services delivered seven days a week.
Management actively works on behalf of the District parcels to ensure that city and county services
and policies support the District. Included in this item are professional services, insurance, annual
financial audit, and related city fees to collect and process assessments, as well as a reserve for
uncollectible assessments.

DETERMINATION OF SAFETY IMPACT

The Board action will not have an impact on safety standards for Metro.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The BID’s proposed assessment for Calendar Year 2019 is $83,086.27. The assessments will be
subject to annual increases not to exceed 5% per year (see Attachment D for full schedule).
Assuming a 5% increase per year, the total cost to Metro over the eight-year term of the BID is
projected to be $793,400.

Impact to Budget

Funding to participate in this BID is included in the FY19 budget request for Cost Center 0651 (Non-
Departmental Real Estate) under Project 306006 (Systemwide Bus Operations), Account No. 50799
(Taxes). Funding source is ordinary operating funds including fares and sales tax revenues. These
funds are eligible for bus and rail operations.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Metro could refrain from signing the petition and casting a ballot. This alternative is not
recommended. Based on the evaluation of the benefits to Metro, participation in the BID is
recommended.

NEXT STEPS

Execute petition and participate in the BID.
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ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Fashion BID Boundaries

Attachment B - Map of District

Attachment C - Evaluation of Fashion District Bid Benefit to Metro
Attachment D - Metro Owned Parcels in BID and Eight-Year Costs
Attachment E - BID Guidelines

Prepared by: Nick Szamet, Senior Administrative Analyst, Countywide Planning & Development,
(213) 922-2441
John Potts, DEO, Countywide Planning & Development, (213) 922-2435

Reviewed by: Therese W. McMillan, Chief Planning Officer, (213) 922-7077

g

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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ATTACHMENT A

FASHION DISTRICT BID BENEFIT ZONE BOUNDARIES

The Fashion District Business Improvement District includes all property within
a boundary formed by:

Starting at the northwest corner of the parcel on the southwest corner of Spring
Street and 7™ Street go east along 7" Street including parcels on the south
side of 7" Street to Main Street. Turn north on Main Street until the north parcel
line of the parcel 5148--021--012 on the northeast corner of Main Street and
7t Street. Follow the north parcel line of the parcel 5148--021--012 on the
northeast corner of Main Street and 7" Street until it intersects with the west
parcel line of property facing on the west side of Los Angeles Street. Turn
north along the west parcel line of parcels facing on the west side of Los
Angeles Street to 6" Street. At 6! Street, turn east along 6™ Street including
parcels on the south side of 6" Street until Wall Street. Turn south on Wall
Street until intersecting with the north parcel line of the parcels facing on the
north side of 7" Street. Turn east following the north parcel line of parcels
facing on the north side of 7" Street until San Pedro Street. At San Pedro
Street turn south along San Pedro Street including parcels on the west side of
San Pedro Street to 8™ Street. Turn east on 8% Street to the east parcel line
of parcels facing on the east side of San Pedro Street. Turn south along the
east parcel line of parcels facing on the east side of San Pedro Street to
Olympic Boulevard, continue east on Olympic Boulevard including parcels on
the south side of Olympic Boulevard to the southeast parcel at the intersection
of Olympic Boulevard and Stanford Avenue. Continue south along the east
parcel line of parcels facing on the east side of Stanford Avenue to the north
parcel line of parcels facing on the north side of 12" Street. Turn east across
Stanford Avenue and continue east along the north parcel line to parcel 5132-
-014--016, then turn south along the east parcel line of parcel 5132-- 014--016
following the east parcel line of parcels facing on the east side of Paloma Street
until14® Street. Turn east along 14™ Street including parcels on the south side
of 14" Street to Essex Street. At Essex Street, turn south including only
parcels on the west side of Essex Street to 16™ Street. At 16" Street, turn west
to Griffith Ave including parcels on the north side of 16" Street.

At Griffith Avenue, turn south to 18" Street including parcels on west side of
Griffith Avenue. At 18" Street, turn west to San Pedro Street including parcels
on the north side of 18" street. At San Pedro Street continue west along the
south parcel line of parcels facing on the south side of the 10 Freeway,
including parcels 5127--002--017 and 5127--002--004 to Maple Avenue. At
Maple Avenue turn north to the intersection with 18™ Street, continue west
along 18! Street until the intersection of Broadway and 18" Street. Turn north
along Broadway to 17" Street. Turn east along 17" Street to the west parcel
line of parcels facing on the west side of Main Street. Turn north along the
west parcel line of parcels facing on the west side of Main Street, excluding
parcel 5139--026--011, until 11t Street. At 11™ Street turn west to the alley
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behind parcels facing on the west side of Broadway and then continue north
following the west parcel line of parcels facing on the west side of Broadway
to 9" Street. At 9" Street turn east, including the parcel on the south side of
ot Street, and then continue north on Broadway, including the parcels on the
eastside of Broadway to the north parcel line of parcel 5144--016--066 follow
the north parcel line of parcel 5144--016--066 to the west parcel line of parcels
facing on the west side of Spring Street, turn north following the west parcel line
of parcels facing on the west side of Spring Street until reaching the starting
point at the southwest corner of Spring Street and 7% Street.

Santee Alley Overlay
The Overlay includes all parcels having front footage on Santee Alley between
Olympic Boulevard to the north and 12th Street to the south.

District Expansion

The Fashion District Business Improvement District boundaries have
expanded to the east and south to include all parcels east of the current
boundary between Olympic Boulevard to the north, the 10 Freeway to the
south, and Paloma Street on the east. The area is detailed on the map on
page 12. Parcels within this area have similar uses to Fashion District
Business Improvement District parcels such as fashion retail, fashion
wholesale and manufacturing.

District Boundary Rationale
The property uses within the general boundaries of the Fashion District
Business Improvement District are a mix of retail fashion, fashion wholesale,
manufacturing, education, religious, parking, office, hotel, residential and
publicly-owned parcels. Services and improvements provided by the District
are designed to provide special benefits to parcels that contain retail fashion,
fashion wholesale, manufacturing, education, religious, parking, office, hotel,
residential and publicly- owned uses. Services and improvements provided by
the District are designed to provide special benefits in the form of improving
the economic vitality within the District by increasing building occupancy and
lease rates, encouraging new business development, attracting
residential/hotel serving businesses and services, attracting office and retail
tenants, attracting retail and wholesale customers, attracting new residents
and students, increasing attendance and encouraging commerce that provide
a special benefit to retail fashion, fashion wholesale, manufacturing,
education, religious, parking, office, hotel, residential, and publicly-owned
parcels. All of the services provided such as the safety work provided by the
Safe Team and the cleaning work provided by the Clean Team are services
that are over and above the City’s baseline of services and are not provided
by the City. These services are not provided outside of the District because
of the unique nature of these services focusing on the particular needs of each
individually assessed property within the District. These services provide
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particular and distinct benefits to each of the individually assessed parcels
within the District.

Northern Boundary: The northern boundary of the Fashion District Business
Improvement District abuts the boundary of the Historic Downtown Business
Improvement District and the Downtown Industrial Business Improvement
District. These districts provide improvements and activities similar to the
services provided by the Fashion District Business Improvement District. The
only part of the northern boundary that does not about another BID is a two-
block section from Wall Street to San Pedro. None of the properties north of
this two-block section of boundary are Fashion-related. The properties in this
two block section predominately provide services to Los Angeles's homeless
population and are not going to receive special benefit from the services and
improvements provided by the District which are designed to provide special
benefits to the individually assessed primarily retail, wholesale, manufacturing,
education, religious, parking, office, hotel, residential and publicly owned
properties in the form of improving the economic vitality by increasing building
occupancy and lease rates, encouraging new business development,
attracting residential/hotel serving businesses and services, attracting office
tenants, attracting retail and wholesale customers, attracting new residents
and encouraging commerce. In order to ensure that parcels outside of the
District will not specially benefit from the improvements and services funded
with the assessment, improvements, and services will only be provided within
the boundaries of the District.

Eastern Boundary: The eastern boundary of the Fashion District Business
Improvement District abuts in part the western boundary of the Downtown
Industrial District which provides improvements and activities similar to those
proposed to be provided by the Fashion District Business Improvement
District. The remainder of the eastern boundary, including the expansion area,
was chosen based upon the high concentration of Fashion use, both
wholesale and retail. Properties within the District boundary provide primarily
Fashion uses. Properties east of the District boundary are primarily non-
fashion wholesale and light manufacturing parcels that focus on automobile
products and electronic products. Properties within the District require
services that are designed to provide special benefit to the high concentration
of fashion uses. The clean, safe and communication/promotion services that
the District will provide to parcels within the District boundaries are designed
to specifically meet the needs of primarily fashion-oriented parcels in the form
of improving the economic vitality in the District by increasing building
occupancy and lease rates, encouraging new business development,
attracting residential serving businesses and services, attracting new
residents and encouraging commerce and will not provide special benefits to
the primarily non fashion use properties outside of the boundaries. In order to
ensure that parcels outside of the District will not specially benefit from the
improvements and services funded with the assessment, improvements and
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services will only be provided within the boundaries of the District., Specifically,
safety patrols, maintenance personnel, and similar service providers employed
in connection with the District will only patrol and provide services on the
streets and sidewalks within the District, and will not provide services outside
of District boundaries.

Southern Boundary: The southern boundary of the Fashion District Business
Improvement District is approximately the same as it has been for the past
four terms and was established by the 10 Freeway and the freeway on and off
ramps. Expansion Parcels are also bounded by the 10 Freeway to the south.
The District includes some parcels south of the 10 Freeway in order to provide
service to the freeway entry and exit points of the District. There are only a
few scattered fashion related uses south of this boundary. The primary uses
are non-fashion warehouses, non- fashion neighborhood serving retail and
fast food services. They will not receive special benefits from the clean, safe
and communication services provided by the district.  Services and
improvements provided by the District are designed to provide special benefits
to the individually assessed primarily fashion retail, fashion wholesale, fashion
manufacturing, education, religious, parking, office, hotel, residential and
publicly owned properties in the form of improving the economic vitality within
the District by increasing building occupancy and lease rates, encouraging new
business development, attracting residential/hotel serving businesses and
services, attracting office tenants, attracting retail and wholesale customers,
attracting new residents and encouraging commerce. In order to ensure that
parcels outside of the District will not specially benefit from the unique
improvements and services funded with the assessment, improvements, and
services will only be provided within the boundaries of the District. Specifically,
safety patrols, maintenance personnel, and similar service providers employed
in connection with the District will only patrol and provide services on the
streets and sidewalks within the District, and will not provide services outside
of District boundaries.

Western Boundary: The western boundary of the Fashion District Business
Improvement District abuts the South Park Business Improvement District and
the Historic Downtown Business Improvement District. These districts provide
improvements and activities similar to the services provided by the Fashion
District Business Improvement District. In order to ensure that parcels outside
of the District will not specially benefit from the improvements and services
funded with the assessment, improvements, and services will only be
provided within the boundaries of the District. Specifically, safety patrols,
maintenance personnel, and similar service providers employed in connection
with the District will only patrol and provide services on the streets and
sidewalks of individual assessed parcels within the District, and will not provide
services outside of District boundaries.
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EVALUATION OF FASHION BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BENEFITS TO METRO

Evaluation of Benefits to Metro

The proposed BID includes four (4) parcels owned by Metro. Three of the parcels are
improved and comprise the Division 2 Bus Facility located at 720 E 15th St., Los
Angeles. Additionally, Metro owns a parcel for which a private parking garage is
operated,; this site houses a layover for Metro buses on the first floor and is located at
636 Maple Ave., Los Angeles.

The total proposed District-budgeted assessment for the 2019 year of operation is
$4,971,622.31. Assessments will be subject to annual increases not to exceed 5%
each year. Revenue for the eight-year term of the BID is expected to total
approximately $47,474,562.73. The budget will cover improvements, activities and
services which include (1) enhanced safety programs such as bicycle patrol, night
vehicle patrol and foot patrol in the area; and (2) enhanced clean programs such as
sidewalk sweeping, sidewalk pressure washing graffiti and handbill removal, trash
removal, landscape programs and tree trimming. The proposed Fashion District BID
assessment to Metro over the eight-year period is estimated to be $793,399.84 which is
approximately 1.5% of the total BID revenue.

Analysis of Benefit to Metro

The Guidelines on Metro Participation in Proposed Assessment Districts (“Guidelines”)
established general guidelines for determining benefits to Metro properties as outlined
below. A list of Metro properties included in the proposed BID is attached, with an
indication of the assessment to each parcel (Attachment D). The guidelines require an
analysis of each new assessment district service and/or improvement based on whether
it improves Metro property or facilities, benefits Metro employees, benefits the Metro
riding public or reduce costs for the Metro.

Following is the analysis of benefits to Metro from the Fashion District Business
Improvement District based on the Guidelines.

TIER 1 — NO BENEFIT
e Subsurface easements
e Aerial easements
¢ Right of Way

TIER 2 — MINOR OR NO POTENTIAL BENEFIT
e Vacant Land
e Parking Lots
e Bus Layover — 639 Wall St. is a bus layover facility.
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TIER 3 — MINOR OR SOME POTENTIAL BENEFIT

Bus Division — Division 2

Bus Terminals

Customer Service Centers

USG Headquarters Building
Maintenance Facilities

Rail Division

Rail Terminus

Stations —Miscellaneous Buildings

TIER 4 — ACTUAL BENEFIT

Joint Development Projects

Metro Benefits — The Metro Property fronting on a public street benefits from the
Fashion District BID services. The services provided are categorized as Safe and
Clean Programs.

The Clean Team Program provides the following special services to Metro parcels:

Maintenance services 6 days/week from 7:30am-2pm

Increased frequency of maintenance services

Service/empty/dispose of trash bags at receptacles

Sidewalk sweeper personnel sweep up trash/debris from sidewalks, gutters, tree
wells, and fence lines

Monthly pressure washing of sidewalks and street furniture around parcels and
sidewalks

Graffiti and handbill removal from buildings, sidewalks, fencing, light standards,
street trees, street furniture, and news racks

Bulky items picked up, occurs more frequent around vacant land parcels
Weed removal on sidewalks and tree wells

Tree trimming

The Safe Team Program provides the following special services to Metro parcels:

Safety services 7 days/week from 1:30pm-12am

Increased frequency of safety services, safety foot and bicycle patrol 8 to10
times per day

Prevent, deter, report, and address District quality of life issues

Respond to loitering, thefts, transients, illegal vending, graffiti, fights, drug dealing
Respond and work collaboratively with LAPD and private Metro security to
address common issues

Patrol and monitor vacant parcels for homeless and dumping activity

Provide hospitality services (directions, etc.) to transit riders
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Communication Program:

e Marketing program has made the District an attractive destination which provides
benefit to transit ridership.

e Marketing events promote riding Metro to access the Fashion District.

e Website highlights businesses and draws customers to the District, providing a
benefit to transit ridership.

e BID Partnership with Metro on destination discount program with District
businesses. Metro riders show proof of riding transit and receive discounts at
participating District businesses. Program benefits ridership.
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METRO-OWNED PARCELS IN BID AND EIGHT-YEAR COSTS

For the Calendar Year 2019, the expected costs per parcel and ownership contribution are
outlined in the following table:

Parcel 2019 Assessment Apportionment of

Street Address Number Metro Use Amount Mpe?ro Ownership
720 E 15th St. 5132-028-902 Division 2 $ 34,360 0.61%
768 E 15th St. 5132-029-905 Division 2 $ 39,452 0.70%
1507 Griffith 5132-029-907 Division 2 $ 3,205 0.06%

636 Maple Ave. Bus Layover
5148-023-902 with Private $ 6,069 0.11%
Parking

Total $ 83,086 1.48%

The total cost to Metro over the life of the BID term—including 5% year-over-year increases—
are estimated to be as follows:

Period Year Amount
1 2019 $ 83,086
2 2020 $ 87,241
3 2021 $ 91,603
4 2022 $ 96,183
5 2023 $ 100,992
6 2024 $ 106,041
7 2025 $ 111,344
8 2026 $ 116,911

Total $ 793,400
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REVISED

FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 14, 2014

SUBJECT: GUIDELINES ON LACMTA’S PARTICIPATION IN PROPOSED
BENEFIT ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS (BID)

ACTION: DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

RECOMMENDATION

Delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer to determine the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (‘LACMTA”) participation in Benefit Assessment
District where the total assessment over the term of the BID does not exceed $500,000,

and where the action represents a renewal of a BID previously approved by the
Board.

BACKGROUND

The MTA Board adopted Guidelines on LACMTA Participation in Proposed Assessment
Districts (“Guidelines”) in June 1998 (See Attachment A). The Guidelines require staff
to analyze each assessment district and/or improvement based on whether they
improve MTA property or facility, benefit MTA employees, benefit Metro’s passengers,
or reduce costs for the agency. Staff is to provide the Board with an analysis, on a
case by case basis, that determines whether MTA property benefits from the proposed
services or improvements; and whether the benefit to the property exceeds the cost of
the assessment. Based on the guidelines, the Board must determine whether or not to
participate in the proposed district.

DISCUSSION

The existing policy specifically requires that staff analyze each new assessment
district’s services and provide the MTA Board with an analysis, on a case by case basis.
Many of the BIDS are at levels that are significantly below the current delegated
authority of the Chief Executive Officer of $500,000. In addition, the analysis of the
benefit to LACMTA is routine and warrants the agency’s participation. Staff would

prepare the same level of review and analysis of the benefits of participation in

the BID and submit to the CEO for review and approval. In any case where the total
assessment for a BID’s renewal exceeds $500,000 over the term of the BID, the

3



analysis will be completed and submitted to the Board for approval. Any participation

in a newly proposed BID will be subject to Board approval. Staffwould-still-prepare

DETERMINATION OF SAFETY IMPACT

The Board action will not have an impact on safety standards for Metro. However,
generally a BID's safety program will increase safety and crime prevention in the area
around LACMTA owned properties.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

LACMTA currently participate in 48 41 BIDs and street lighting districts. The annual
budget as of FY14 is approximately $517,000.00. Funding to participate in the
established BIDs is included in Cost Center 0651, Account No. 50799 (Taxes). Funds
are budgeted for each fiscal year. Funding for the BIDS are allocated from the
revenue generated from the General Fund - Right of Way Lease Revenue.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

The Board could not approve this recommendation to delegate authority to the Chief
Executive Officer and staff would continue to bring BID renewals these-requests to the
Board for approval. The efficiency and the time involved in agendizing the request on
the Board’s agenda is often constrained by the timeline established by the BID to obtain
MTA's approval. In those cases, MTA would not be able to sign the petition circulated
to property owners affected by the BID for renewals.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A Guidelines on MTA Participation in Proposed Assessment District dated
June 18, 1998
Prepared by: Velma C. Marshall, Deputy Executive Officer — Real Estate
(213) 922-2415
Calvin E. Hollis, Managing Executive Officer- Countywide Planning

and Development
(213) 922-7319

Guidelines on LACMTA's Participation in proposed Benefit Assessment Districts (BID) 2
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Chief Planning Officer
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Arthur T. Leahy v

Chief Executive Officer
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METRO

: GENERAL GUIDELINES
for MTA Participation in Proposed Assessment Districts

1. ipation in |3 cts

Assessment districts can provide a wide variety of services and improvements. However, the
MIAmustdecideindividnallywheﬁnwnotspedﬁchApmpatyhemﬂs from such
services and improvements. Such determination shall be dependent spon:

¢ theuse of MTA property, and
] thesavimoximptovemenispmvidedbyﬂmmwaisﬁct.

2. Evaluation Cyiteria
Theﬁ:ﬂowhgcﬁtaiadmubensedmevahatewheﬁmmmtmmdisﬁawﬁcs

mﬂlorﬁnpmvanentswﬂlbmeﬁtMTAisﬁwextmtthatﬁmsuvicesorhnpmva
specifically:

improve MTA property or facilities,
benefit MTA employees,

benefit the MTA riding public, or
reduce costs for the MTA.

3. Determination of Benefit

Bach proposed assessment district oomniningMI‘Apmpcttywillbemalyzedonacase-lgy-ga.se
basis; however, general guidelines ﬁordetmniningbeneﬁttoMIApmpetﬁwmasouﬂmedm
the following:

TIER 1 - NO BENEFIT
o Subsurface easements
s Aecrial easements
o’ Rights of Way
TIER 2 - MINOR OR NO POTENTIAL BENEFIT

e Vacant Land
e Parking Lots

Guidelines on LACMTA's Participation in proposed Benefit Assessment Districts (BID) 4
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TIER 3 - MINOR OR SOME POTENTIAL BENEFIT

-

%

Rail Termious

TIER 4 - ACTUAL BENEFIT

e Joint Development Projects

Guidelines on LACMTA’s Participation in proposed Benefit Assessment Districts (BID)
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BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2019 (FY19) BUDGET

ACTION:  ADOPT THE FY19 BUDGET

RECOMMENDATION

CONSIDER:

A. ADOPTING the proposed FY19 Budget as presented in the budget document (provided in a
separate transmittal and posted on metro.net); and

B. APPROVING the Life of Project (LOP) budgets for new capital projects with LOP exceeding
$5 million, included in the proposed FY19 Budget and presented in Attachment A; and

C. APPROVING the Reimbursement Resolution declaring Metro’s intention to issue debt in FY19
for capital projects, as shown in Attachment B, with the provision that actual debt issuance will
require separate Board approval; and

D. AMEND the proposed budget to include $2,000,000 for Expo Phase 1 and $20,624,400 for
Expo Phase 2, as approved by Expo Construction Authority for fiscal year 2019, for a total
addition of $22,624,400; and

E. AMEND the proposed budget to include $25,000,000 for farebox upgrade, as approved by the
Board on April 18, 2018; and

F. AMEND the proposed budget to include $500,000 to begin the draft environmental study of
the Crenshaw Northern Extension project upon identification of the preferred alternatives
identified by the Board for this corridor

ISSUE
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California Public Utilities Code Section 130105 requires Metro to adopt an annual budget to manage
the revenues and expenses of the agency’s projects and programs. The budget is the legal
authorization to obligate and spend funds and to implement Board policy. It includes all operating,
capital, planning and programming, subsidy funds, debt service requirements, and general fund
activities for the fiscal year. Budget detail is a management plan for financial activity and is prepared
at the fund, project, department, and expenditure level. The legal level of control is at the fund level.
Total annual expenditures cannot exceed the final appropriation by the Board except for capital
expenditures, which is authorized on a life-of-project basis.

Copies of the proposed budget were made available to the public on May 1, 2018, both electronically
at www.metro.net and through the Records Management Center (RMC) at RMC@metro.net. Printed
copies of the budget document were also made available at the RMC on the plaza level of the
Gateway building on May 1, 2018. The public hearing is scheduled for May 16, 2018. Advance public
notification of this hearing was issued through advertisements posted in over two dozen news
publications on April 11" and May 1%, 2018.

BUDGET MESSAGE

The transportation landscape of Los Angeles (LA) County is changing. Metro is leading the change
with groundbreaking, expansive projects designed to invigorate our current infrastructure. As our
population grows, mounting congestion stands in our way. Therefore, Congestion Reduction, along
with overall Customer Experience, is Metro’s top priority to improve the quality of life for LA County
residents.

Through enhanced transit services and an ever-growing list of innovative new transportation
initiatives, we aim to relieve congestion by focusing on the larger mobility picture. This will require
addressing the issue of connectivity across all modes and all trip purposes. As we work to integrate
trips made by private vehicles and transit with better first/last mile connections, we are moving closer
to a transportation network that accommodates the mobility needs of all residents and visitors in LA
County.

Metro’s goal in the coming year is to move more people onto transit by making meaningful
improvements to the services we provide. In order to appeal to a wider audience and encourage
transit use among those who have never used our system, we must create a new customer
experience. As a direct approach, we are committed to enhance our transit services by taking
advantage of new technologies, such as MicroTransit, more advanced mobile apps, and better real-
time information. While we improve overall service and tackle congestion with a comprehensive
transportation strategy, it follows that increased ridership will be a natural outcome. Once we prove
that Metro is safe, clean, easy to use, and efficient, we can make sure LA keeps on moving.
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DISCUSSION

The proposed $6.6 billion budget for FY19 is balanced and aligns resources in a fiscally responsible
manner to achieve the following goals:

1. Advance safety and security for our customers, the public, and Metro employees
2.

Exercise fiscal discipline to ensure financial stability

3. Plan and deliver capital projects on time and on budget while increasing opportunities for small

©COeNSO A

business development and innovation

Improve the customer experience and expand access to transportation options

Increase transit use and ridership

Implement an industry-leading state of good repair program

Invest in workforce development

Promote extraordinary innovation

Contribute to the implementation of agencywide and departmental Affirmative Action and
Equal Employment Opportunity goals

As part of the performance management process, Metro will monitor progress throughout the year
relative to the Agency goals using measurements such as budget variance, Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) target achievement, Project Milestone achievement and cost savings and new
revenue generation through the risk allocation matrix (RAM). This reinforces Metro’s commitment to
strategic monitoring of performance and the improvement of accountability.

Metro
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Resources Summary

FY19

FY18 Prelim FY18-FY19 FY18-FY19
Resources (§ in Millions) Budget Budget $Change % Change
1| Sales Tax, TDA, and STA $ 36912 $ 39802 |8 2890 7 8%
2 | Federal, State and Local Grants 89859 997.3 11.4 1.2%
3 | Passanger Fares 302 6 3026 - 0.0%
4 | ExpressLanes, Advertising, and Other Revenues 137.7 158.1 204 14.8%

Other Reimbursement Revenues'" 11643 11244 (39.9) -3.4%
Total Budget $ 62817 $ 65626 $  280.9

"ncludes bond proceeds, Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFI&) loan drawdown and prior vear commitment

Resources %
of FY19 Budget

Expresslanes,
Advertising, and Other
Revenues

2% Other Reimbursement
Revenues(1)
17%

The FY19 Proposed Budget ensures resources available to meet the planned Metro program and
project delivery for the coming fiscal year. Revenue projections are built on historical sales tax growth
cycles, accepted forecasting sources and Metro’s 30 year actual sales tax receipts. The total FY19
budget planned resources is $280.9 million or 4.5% greater than FY18.

e Sales Tax, TDA, and STA increases $289 million or 7.8% in total, due to the following 2
reasons:
- There is a $98 million or 3.4% projected increase for Prop A, C and Measure R sales
tax as well as TDA revenues. Measure M increase is 5.5% more at 8.9%, or $68.8
million, reflecting allowances for FY18 Measure M inaugural year of lower than
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anticipated sales tax receipts.

- STA and State Senate Bill 1 (SB1) increase by $122 million or 204% based on State
Controllers’ Office (SCO) estimates and new SB1 supplemental funding for transit and
state of good repair.

e Federal, State and Local Grants are at a modest $11 million increase or 1.2%, reflecting
related capital expense activity.

e Passenger Fare revenues to remain flat due to level ridership & fare per boarding estimates.

e ExpressLanes, Advertising, and Other Revenues are increasing $20.4 million or 14.8% in total,
primarily due to the addition of Green Funds and increasing CNG credits for FY19.

e Other Reimbursement Revenues is $39.9 million or 3.4% lower in total based on timing of
project schedules. This includes bond proceeds, sales tax carryover, and Transportation

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan drawdowns which are backed by future
expected sales tax.
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Expenditure Summary

In FY19, Metro is poised to lead the ongoing transformation of Los Angeles County, with a bold plan
to push the region to new heights. This year, we will continue our rapid progress toward achieving
the vision of Measure M, with over a dozen transit expansion projects in various stages of planning,
groundbreaking, and construction. We are also focused on the rejuvenation of our existing lines and
facilities, as we move to pilot an electric bus fleet and continue major rehabilitation efforts on the Blue

Line, our oldest rail line.
FY19
FY18 Prelim FY18-FY19 FY18-FY19
Expenditures by Program Type ($ in Millions) Budget Budget $Change % Change
1| Transportation Infrastructure Development $ 19872 $ 19877 |8 05 0.0%
2 | Metro Transit — Operations, Maintenance, & Regional Operating Services 1,755.4 1,7955 401 2.3%
3| Metro Transit - SGR & Other Asset Improvements 4319 4930 611 14.1%
4| Subsidy Funding Programs 1,2433 1,333.0 897 7.2%
5| Regional Rail 178.4 179.0 06 0.3%
6 | Congestion Management 113.0 127.3 14.3 12 6%
7| General Planning & Programs 133.5 167.4 33.9 25.4%
2| Debt Service 383.9 416.6 327 8.5%
9| Oversight & Admin 552 63.3 8.2 14.8%
Total Budget $ 62817 § 65626 $ 280.9 4.5%
Expenditures % of FY19 Budget
General Planning & | Debt Service, 6% |
Programs, 3% | ﬂ— Oversight & Admin, 1%
Congestion Management, e
2%
T 3 = Transportation
|Reglonal Rail, 3% Infrastructure
Development, 30%
20%
Assetlmprovements, 8%
Metro Transit - Operations
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The total budget increase from FY18 to FY19 is $281 million or 4.5%. The major differences are
addressed in program categories below which include the assumption for CPI increase of 2.25%.

Transportation Infrastructure Development remains steady and supports Measure R and M
projects such as Westside Purple Line Extension, including the Division 20 expansion,
Regional Connector and Crenshaw LAX projects.

Metro Transit - Bus and Rail Operations & Maintenance has a 5.1% increase from FY18 due
to the new labor contracts and additional Revenue Service Hours (RSH) needed to support
bus bridges for the “New Blue” rehabilitation project and special events.

o Bus Revenue Service Hours (RSH) increases by 104,000 hours or 1.5%, due to Bus
bridges for Blue Line closures related to the “New Blue® rehabilitation project and minor
service adjustments to relieve overcrowding.

o Rail RSH increases by 2,000 hours or 0.2%, due to minor service adjustments for 3-car
consists on the Gold Line and headway increases on the Green line during the AM
peak; increases mostly offset by reductions due to Blue Line closures for the New Blue
project.

Metro Transit - State of Good Repair (SGR) & Other Asset Improvements is at a 4% increase
from FY18 due to piloting the conversion of the bus fleet to Electric/Zero Emission Buses
(ZEB), rehabilitation of the Blue Line, system upgrades, and improving customer experience.
Subsidy Funding Programs increases by $89.6 million, or 7.2%, primarily due to increased
funding from growth in sales tax revenues and new SB1 funding.

Regional Rail remains constant with continuing operating and capital support of the Metrolink
commuter rail system and the Metro managed Regional Rail.

Congestion Management is increasing by $14 million, or 13%, primarily due to a service
provider and contract renewal rate change.

General Planning & Programs increases by $31 million, or 25%, due to the expansion of
bikeshare, LA River Bikepath, Rail to Rail/River, Union Station improvements and Public
Private Partnerships (P3).

Debt Service increases by $33 million , or 9% due to repayment of FY18 proceeds issued as
previously approved by the Board.

Oversight & Admin is a $6 million increase, or 15%, due to continued ramp up of support for
carrying out Measure M initiatives as well as cost inflation factors.

The labor cost increase reflects rising cost inflation, living wage standard increases and labor
market contraction. Wage increases and health/welfare benefits for represented employees
are based on Collective Bargaining Agreements; salary increases for non-represented
employees are expected to be in line with represented employees at a 4% increase over FY18
and is merit based. Non-represented medical/dental benefits reflect costs previously approved

by the Board.
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FTE Summary

The FY19 proposed budget includes requests for 79 non-represented FTE additions and up to 170
represented FTE additions.

A summary of the requested FTEs is shown in the table below.

Mon-Represented FTEs

FY18 Budget 1,601
Congestion Management 3
Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service 11
Debt Service
General Planning & Program 1
Measure M Initiatives Support, Oversight & Admin 26
Metro Operations and Support 17
MR/MM Planning Studies 16
Westside Subway Ext Sect 1, 2, 3 4
FY18 vs FY19 Change 79
FY19 Proposed 1,680
Represented FTEs
FY18 Budget 8,367
Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service 83
Operating Bus Service 81
Property Maintenance 2
Metro Programs Support, Oversight & Admin 4
FY18 vs FY19 Change 170
FY19 Proposed 8,537

{1} The F¥19 Proposed Represented FTE's will not exceed 170 and is

subject to change based on further service level odjustments.

Total Non-Represented FTE increase of 79 primarily due to Crenshaw project and other

capital projects support, Metro operations, and continuing Measure M initiatives and oversight.
Total Represented FTE increase of up to 170 primarily due to Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service
and increase in bus service for “New Blue” rehabilitation bus bridges.
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Life of Project (LOP) Budgets

Projects greater than $1 million with LOP budget increases and new projects in excess of $5 million
must be approved by the Board in separate Board actions.

Attachment A includes a detailed listing of new capital projects for FY19 with LOP in excess of $5
million. These projects are included in the proposed FY19 budget but do require LOP approval by the
Board, as requested by Recommendation B of this report.

Reimbursement Resolution

Per Federal tax law, bond proceeds can only be used for expenses incurred after the issuance of
bonds. Metro must pass a resolution indicating the intent to issue bonds at a later date for the
expenditures described in the reimbursement resolution to be reimbursed for expenses incurred
before the bond issue. See Attachment B for anticipated expenditures in the budget related to
proceeds from future bond issuance.

Public Outreach

Soliciting meaningful input from the public and stakeholders is critical to budget development. The
comprehensive outreach program for FY19 included many opportunities to provide feedback online
or by telephone in addition to in-person meetings. These meetings included Metro Service Councils,
Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), Technical Advisory Committee, Bus Operations Subcommittee,
Local Transit Systems Subcommittee, Streets & Freeways Subcommittee, Policy Advisory Committee
(PAC), Valley Industry & Commerce Association (VICA) Transportation Committee, and BizFed. This
allowed for the greatest level of engagement and direct dialogue with stakeholders.

To encourage participation, the times and locations of public workshops were advertised through
multiple channels, including the Metro website, “take ones” on board vehicles, newspaper
advertising, messages on hold, e-blasts, and social media ads. Outreach efforts for FY19 also
included two Telephone Town Hall sessions and an interactive Online Budget Tool, making it
convenient for LA County residents to participate in the budget process without physical presence at
a meeting. A summary of public outreach efforts and comments received is shown in Attachment C.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The proposed FY19 budget (provided in a separate transmittal) at $6.6 billion, plus the following
amendments: $2 million for Expo Phase 1, $20.6 million for Expo Phase 2, $25 million for farebox
upgrades, and $500,000 for Crenshaw Northern Extension, is balanced, and includes expenditures
and appropriates the resources necessary to fund them. The proposed budget demonstrates Metro’s
ongoing commitment to meeting its capital and operating obligations, which is a requirement
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necessary in order to continue to receive subsidies from the state and federal governments and to
administer regional transportation funding to local cities and municipal operators.

NEXT STEPS

Upon Board authorization and adoption of the FY19 budget, staff will start make funds available for
the planned transit and transportation programs outlined in this document and be programmed to
fund regional transit/transportation partnering agencies, cities and recipients.

Monitoring the FY 19 budget performance will be a year-round ongoing effort. Staff will conduct
quarterly performance management reviews and track metrics to reinforce accountability and
budgetary control. There will be a mid-year budget assessment to evaluate the budget’s alignment to
agency priorities and actual performance. In addition, continuous improvements will be implemented
to the process and regular updates will be reported to the Board.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - FY19 New Capital Projects
Attachment B - Reimbursement Resolution of Metro for FY19
Attachment C - FY19 Public Outreach
Prepared by: Office of Management & Budget Staff
Irene Fine, Deputy Executive Officer, Finance, (213) 922-4420

Reviewed by: Nalini Ahuja, Chief Financial Officer, (213) 922-3088
% A
/4
Phillip A. Washington
Chief Executive Officer '
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ATTACHMENT A

FY19 New Capital Projects

Transportation Infrastructure Development

il PROJECT: Orange Line BRT Improvements

PROJECT OWNER: Program Management
LOP: to be adopted at a future date FY19: $11,429,000

SCOPE: Improvements consist of grade separations and gate systems along the Orange Line.
Recommended scope includes aerial grade separation between Sepulveda and Van Nuys, four quadrant
gates at busway intersections between North Hollywood and Chatsworth, and closing minor street crossing.

JUSTIFICATION: Measure M project, required to ground break in FY19. The project is planned to address
excessive travel times and safety concerns for existing at-grade intersections. Grade separations, four
guadrant gate system and closure of minor busway crossing will improve the bus operating speeds, reduce
end-to-end bus travel times and reduce potential conflicts between MOL buses and cross-street vehicles,
cyclists and pedestrians.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Measure M 35%




State of Good Repair Projects
vl PROJECT: Bus Midlife Project (203024)
PROJECT OWNER: Operations - Central Maintenance
LOP: $158,138,000 FY19: $42,069,600

SCOPE: The Bus Midlife Program provides preventive, midlife maintenance service to Metro buses. The
buses currently in the Midlife program have been in service at least 7 to 8 years. The maintenance services
provided include engine package change-outs, fuel cylinder replacements, suspension work, wheelchair
securement system retrofit, body repair, painting, and interior refurbishment including graffiti abatement
and wheelchair lift maintenance.

JUSTIFICATION: The Bus Midlife Program improves the safety, performance, and reliability of Metro
buses. The improved overall condition of the program’s vehicles also helps to reduce ongoing maintenance
costs and the amount of maintenance work performed at the Metro Bus Operating divisions. The program
promotes the efficient use of Metro and Central Maintenance resources by having each bus series go
through a planned production process in which labor, material and facilities are scheduled to proactively
address problems rather than just reacting to them.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax

KW PROJECT: Bus Engine Replacement

PROJECT OWNER: Operations - Central Maintenance
LOP: $13,518,000 FY19: $1,528,322

SCOPE: Purchase near zero emission engines and replace high mileage engines that reached the end of
their useful life enabling Metro to continue utilizing the buses. The plan involves ninety-eight (98) engines
and peripheral equipment (hoses, clamps, gaskets and wiring) required for optimal operation.

JUSTIFICATION: This program allows Metro to replace engines in a timely manner and keeps high
mileage buses in service. Without this program, Metro would struggle to manage a number of buses failing
while in service. This program directly impact Metro's ability to meet service requirements by coordinating
procurement, logistics, fleet management and maintenance.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax




/M PROJECT: FY19 NRV REPLACEMENT (RAIL)

PROJECT OWNER: Operations - Maintenance Administration
LOP: $8,994,000 FY19: $2,705,696

SCOPE: This project is for the replacement of Non-Revenue Vehicles and Equipment scheduled for FY19.
This includes: trucks, vans, sedans, carts, forklifts, generators, hi-rail support vehicles, rail bound support
vehicles, floor scrubbers, compressors, tractors, trailers, tow motors and other vehicles and equipment.
(Agency-wide, includes all department vehicles and equipment)

JUSTIFICATION: Metro owns and operates a fleet of over 2,100 vehicles and pieces of equipment that are
used to support the Metro mission of Planning, Designing, Constructing, Administering, and Operating the
Los Angeles County's largest transportation system. The funding requested for this project is required to
purchase replacement vehicles to support this mission. The vehicles identified for replacement have
exceeded their useful life in age, mileage or are in poor operating condition, and are now scheduled for
retirement. Further, the cost of repair, downtime, on street safety, and the impact to support departments
ability to respond to repair/service activities reduces operational effectiveness.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax

Sl PROJECT: MRL A650 Component Overhauls

PROJECT OWNER: Operations - Rail Fleet Maintenance
LOP: $8,120,000 FY19: $32,000

SCOPE: The heavy rail fleet overhaul will include repair and replacement of components that are not part
of the mid-life. Improvements include renovating the car interiors by repainting all seat frames, converting
seat mountings and redesigning the front and rear end doors. Mechanical improvement will include an
overhaul of the friction brakes, traction motors and the drawbar.

JUSTIFICATION: The existing A650 fleet is being gone through a component overhaul program and a
partial major system replacement program. However, there are certain systems still requiring overhaul in
order to maintain the "State of Good Repairs" which are not included in the previous scope. The aim is to
continue to service the public for another 15 years.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax




@ PROJECT: Enterprise Asset Management System

PROJECT OWNER: ITS - Business Applications

LOP: to be adopted at a future date FY19: $2,728,691
SCOPE: Replace the existing legacy based Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) M3 System and meet
developing federal requirements for the “Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act” (MAP 21
State of Good Repair). This provides a scalable technology solution to support LA Metro’s expanding bus
and rail services, such as the Regional Rail Connector initiative.

JUSTIFICATION: The legacy based EAM M3 system will no longer be supported / maintained by the
vendor, Infor. The vendor has transitioned to new EAM solution strategy and has stopped all development
support.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax

f@l PROJECT: Connected Facilities Project

PROJECT OWNER: ITS - Systems Architecture
LOP: $7,454,200 FY19: $175,000
SCOPE: The Connected Facilities Project will replace twelve year old Communication Backbone

Infrastructure, provide Wi-Fi Coverage in Yards providing surveillance video, safety analytics video, transit
operations data and vehicle diagnostics.

JUSTIFICATION: The project supports Metro’s Goals of safety and security, fiscal efficiency, and
productivity by enabling technicians the ability to access vehicles' systems remotely.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Enterprise Funding sources such as local and state sales tax

il PROJECT: Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service
PROJECT OWNER: Operations - Rail Integration
LOP: $40,956,000 FY19: $25,939,290

SCOPE: The Crenshaw Pre-revenue Project will prepare Metro for the operation of the new rail line. Metro
staff will inspect third-party construction and test systems prior to revenue operations in FY20. Testing
includes operational scenarios examining integrity and system reliability of infrastructure and new rail cars.

JUSTIFICATION: Significant testing is crucial for seamless system integration of multiple types of rail cars
with new systems. The training and systems testing will ensure staff and infrastructure are able to handle a
multitude of revenue operating situations prior to opening day.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Measure R 35%




N PROJECT: Willowbrook / Rosa Parks Station Improvements
PROJECT OWNER: Program Management

LOP: $109,305,000 FY19: $12,137,000
SCOPE: Modernize Willowbrook/Rosa Parks station and surrounding area to provide multi-modal
transportation/community hub incorporating bike hub, customer service and security center and community
plaza. Included in the scope are: extension of the Blue Line platform, upgraded pedestrian pathways,
improved wayfinding signage, upgraded vertical transportation, consolidated regional and local bus bays,
pick-up and drop-off zones, lighting enhancements, and other improvements to increase ridership and
enhance the customer experience.

JUSTIFICATION: Willowbrook/Rosa Parks Station is one of the more heavily used stations in Metro
system. Itis in need of improvements to the passenger flow and regional connectivity between various
transit systems. Metro is working in tandem with several community revitalization efforts in the area to
provide a regional facility to improve connections to the surrounding community, expand station capacity
and multi-modal capacity, streamline rail and bus transfers, ensuring enhanced safety and security
throughout the improvements.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: Federal TIGER grant, Active Transportation & SB1 state fund, Toll
Revenue, Fed 5307, local bonds, TDA Article 4 and other eligible local funds

Other Operating Capital

jl)] PROJECT: Bikeshare Phase 3 Expansion

PROJECT OWNER: Planning & Development - Parking and Shared Mobility Management

LOP: May Board Meeting (2017-0925 - P&P) FY19: $12,708,513
SCOPE: Expand Metro Bike Share to Culver City, Marina del Rey, West Los Angeles, and Downtown Los
Angeles Expanded.

JUSTIFICATION: Bike Share Phase Il project: $10.5M is for expanding to Culver City, Marina del Rey,
West Los Angeles, and Downtown Los Angeles Expanded and $2.2M to add more bike share
stations/bikes to the existing network to better serve our transit riders and increase first/last mile
connections to our transit system and partner communities.

ELIGIBLE FUNDING SOURCE: City's capital reimbursements, Measure M ATP 2%




ATTACHMENT B

REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION
OF THE
LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (the “Metro”)
desires and intends to finance certain costs relating to (i) the design, engineering,
construction, equipage and acquisition of light rail lines including the Crenshaw/LAX
Transit Corridor and Regional Connector projects; (ii) the design, engineering,
construction, equipage and acquisitions for the Rail and Bus State of Good Repair
Program including station improvements and rail gating installations; (iii) the design,
engineering, construction, equipage related to Purple Line Extension Sections 1, 2, and
3; (iv) the engineering, construction, renovation, maintenance, and/or acquisition of
various capital facilities and equipment, including buses and rail cars, related to service
operation; (v) the engineering, construction, renovation, maintenance, and/or acquisition
of various highway/surface transportation assets; and (vi) other transit related projects
(each a “Project” and collectively, the “Projects”™);

WHEREAS, to the extent that federal and/or state grant funding budgeted to be received
during FY19 is delayed or reduced, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority desires and intends to finance certain costs relating to the Projects;

WHEREAS, Metro expects to issue debt through the issuance of tax-exempt bond
issues to pay for these expenditures, which bond issues will have four separate
security sources, Proposition A, Proposition C, Measure R and Measure M sales tax
revenues, respectively, or grant revenues to finance the costs of the Project on a
permanent basis (the “Debt”);

WHEREAS, Metro expects to expend moneys of the Enterprise Fund (other than
moneys derived from the issuance of bonds) on expenditures relating to the costs of the
Projects prior to the issuance of the Debt, which expenditures will be properly
chargeable to a capital account under general federal income tax principles;

WHEREAS, Metro reasonably expects to reimburse certain of such capital expenditures
with the proceeds of the Debt;

WHEREAS, Metro expects that the amount of Debt that will be issued to pay for the
costs of the Projects will not exceed $100.0 million for Proposition A, $400.0 million for
Proposition C, $500.0 million for Measure R and $400.0 million for Measure M.

WHEREAS, at the time of each reimbursement, Metro will evidence the reimbursement
in writing, which identifies the allocation of the proceeds of the Debt to Metro, for the
purpose of reimbursing Metro for the capital expenditures made prior to the issuance of
the Debt;

WHEREAS, Metro expects to make reimbursement allocations no later than eighteen
(18) months after the later of (i) the date on which the earliest original expenditure for the
Project is paid or (ii) the date on which the Project is placed in service (or abandoned),



but in no event later than three (3) years after the date on which the earliest original
expenditure for the Project is paid;

WHEREAS, Metro will not, within one (1) year of the reimbursement allocation, use the
proceeds of the Debt received by way of a reimbursement allocation in a manner that
will result in the creation of replacement proceeds of the Debt or another issue (e.qg.,
Metro will not pledge or use the proceeds received as reimbursement for the payment of
debt service on the Debt or another issue, except that the proceeds of the Debt can be
deposited in a bona fide debt service fund); and

WHEREAS, this Resolution is intended to be a " declaration of official intent” in
accordance with Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that (i) all of the foregoing recitals are true and
correct and (ii) in accordance with Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations, Metro
declares its intention to issue Debt in an amount not to exceed $100.0 million for
Proposition A, $400.0 million for Proposition C, $500.0 million for Measure R and $400.0
million for Measure M; the proceeds of which will be used to pay for the costs of the
Projects, including the reimbursement to Metro for certain capital expenditures relating to
the Projects made prior to the issuance of the Debt.



ATTACHMENT C

FY19 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Summary of FY19 Proposed Budget Public Outreach Efforts and Comments Received

Events Participation

Workshops and Meetings

Covering all Service Councils and key stakeholders
throughout LA County

Telephone Town Hall

7,249

Interactive Budget Tool

3,433 (as of May 3, 2018)

Web Page Visits

3,914 (as of May 3, 2018)

All Comments (Email/mail)

1,459

Comments received from the public during Metro’s FY 19 budget outreach process are
summarized below. This summary includes comments received through May 3, 2018. Due to
the large volume of comments received, not all can be included in this summary. However, the
summary presented is a fair representation of the types of comments received across all
outreach efforts. Comments received during the workshops and meetings have been
addressed; while the written, email, and budget survey comments will be forwarded to relevant
departments for consideration in the development of their programs.

A recap of the comments received during the budget outreach process is shown in the table
below. As evidenced by the range of subjects in the summary, the public provided input and
suggestions on virtually every Metro function. In addition, the perspectives on each issue varied
greatly by respondents.

Accessibility/Rideshare,

0.72%

Streets & Highways,
3.97% T~

Other,

4.54% Advertising, 0.72%

Responsible Spending,

1.30%
Safety & Security,

9.59%
Positive Feedback, 2.88%

Parking, 5.05%

Outreach, 3.17%

Regional Operators,
1.30%

Fares, 3.24% Maintenance, 1.87%

ExpressLanes, 5.98%




Active Transportation e Create more safety programs for pedestrians, designated sidewalks, diagonal
crosswalks and separate walkways

Fix the streets and sidewalks. There are holes

Split sidewalks and have pedestrians and bikes on each half

Don’t close road lanes for bike lanes

Bike lanes should be just for bikes and not pedestrians

Need first/last mile transportation for new rail lines

Need better sidewalks in unincorporated LA County

Add a dedicated east-west path for bikes and pedestrians

Cut bus fares and increase service

Reduce amount of stops on local bus lines

Add one more car to Gold Line in the mornings

End rail service at midnight and add owl service in its place

Add more rail cars during peak hours

Add dedicated lanes for red express bus

Add dedicated full length bus lanes thoroughfares

Improve service between Torrance and West Hollywood

Improve connections between bus lines

Make the light rail system faster to increase ridership

Make riding buses and trains easier and more reliable

When rail lines go out of service, implement bus shuttles quicker

Need to elevate or tunnel rail lines whenever possible

Implement Express loops and local loops

Expand all rail lines, especially the Expo line

Consolidate bus lines so you can add more frequent service on fewer lines
Add rail lines along freeways to access longer distances

Add more long distance commute buses

Consider safety at night at bus stops when scheduling buses

Run rail more often 20 minute wait time is too slow

Building more BRT Lanes is a better use of funds than building more rail
Please increase maintenance on the Blue line to cut down delays
Change traffic control on lights to give light rail priority

More maintenance on buses and trains so more riders will be comfortable
Spend more on train maintenance

Maintain the cleanliness of buses

Clean green line elevators

Replace cloth seats, homeless people make them smell

Don’t sell anymore transponders, making congestion worse in ExpressLanes
Lower cost in the AM, it is too expensive

Make all express lanes carpool lanes

Get rid of the $1 monthly fee for fast track

Add more express lanes and offer a subsidy to car dependent and low income
Allow fast track people to also use all diamond lanes

Increase rail coverage and more express lanes

Add a fast track on the I-5 freeway

Add express lanes to all freeways

Need to fix holes on fast track lanes

Add express lanes to the I-10 and 405, very congested freeways

Expand fast track east from El Monte to Inland Empire

Add more money to enforce proper use of transponders

Do not raise fares on bus or rail

Students should ride for free

Lower prices to make transit more affordable

A smart phone application to pay the fare would be convenient and encourage
transit use

Raise taxes and make public transit free

e Increase fares to provide free parking

Transit Service

Maintenance

ExpressLanes

Fares




o Offer more affordable fares, especially for low income riders

There should be a low income program for monthly bus passes

Add round trip transfers on one fare

Make it easier to navigate public transportation by using one method of
payment for the Los Angeles area

Lower the Senior/Disabled minimum age to 60

Add options for large companies to buy preloaded fares

Adjust and round up single ride fares, but lower the cost of a day pass
Do not provide free rides on transit

Fund and start a Project EIR/EIS for the Northern Extension of the
Crenshaw/LAX Line in 2018 to get this project shovel-ready by 2020
Extend the Gold Line to El Monte

Provide direct service to LAX without having to take a shuttle

Connect Red Line to Crenshaw Line

Do not build more rail, because there will never be enough riders

San Fernando Valley needs a subway

The Vermont bus line should be a subway

Expand into the Orange County area

All rail lines should be elevated to avoid getting stuck in traffic

Extend rail deeper into the Valley, to Pacoima, Sunland, and Lake View
Terrace

The Sepulveda Pass project should be heavy rail

Extend the Red Line to Santa Clarita or Sylmar

Extend the Red Line further north

Add a north/south line from the valley to the Westside

Build a rail line from Laguna Hills to San Jose

The 110 corridor should have a train

Start building rail in the South Bay to provide an alternative to the 405
Add rail in Glendale

Add new express rail service between downtown LA and Long Beach
Build new rail lines that are faster than driving

Build rail from the South Bay to Long Beach

Provide direct rail service from San Dimas to La Canada at 7am

Build a rail line on Santa Monica Blvd

Extend the Green Line to the Norwalk/Santa Fe Springs Metrolink station
Extend the Crenshaw Line into West Hollywood

Add rail service to San Pedro

Make later departures from Union Station on Metrolink

Metrolink should open doors before 7 minutes of departures

Expand Metrolink service to Riverside

Be able to use Metrolink pass on more than one line

Run DASH buses on nights and weekends

Foothill transit needs better management

Reinstate 91 line on Metrolink from 5:40 am to 6:25am

Survey is hard to read with a black and grey background

Permit priorities in responses

Provide more materials for Chinese Americans on how to take Metro bus and
rail

Survey residents where rail doesn’t exist to assess whether to add rail lines
Allow fields on the survey for alternate solutions

Great illustration on Budget Tool of public works involves trade-offs
Language in survey is too advanced and technical for most people
Overhaul Metro.net website

Don’t charge for parking at parking lots

Security at lots just stand around and talk

If you use a Metro pass, then parking should be included

Offer a bundle of passes and long term options for parking

Offer discounted parking for Metro riders

New Rail

Regional Operators

Outreach

Parking




e Parking lots a very unsafe
If you charge at Atlantic Station (low income) why don’t you charge at Arcadia?
Add more parking places so more people can ride Metro
Lack of parking around Metro Stations deters Metro use
Offer low income waivers for parking
Implement permit parking in all stations
Metro is doing a great job
Metro has come a long way
Metro is open to feedback, and that is great
Budget tool is a superb tool to gather input
Thank you for all the hard work and services you provide to the LA County
area
Great budget tool for education and feedback
Appreciative of all updates as people are using Metro more
The bus system is convenient and easy to use
Sub Contract work to the private industry and slash budget by half
People in government positions accept bribes to choose certain projects
Reduce executive management salaries
Cut redundant and overlapping positions that can be eliminated
Encourage businesses to subsidize public transit costs for its employees
Direct more funds to subsidize door to door ride sharing options
Balance between transportation and road repairs
More police officers on all bus lines
Need more security on trains and parking lots
Improve rail station safety
Better enforcement on existing ridership rules
Stop criminalizing poverty with fare inspection
Increase security presence and make it safe for small children
Policing Metro stations to allow safe bicycle parking
Add cameras to rail cars
Remove cops from the trains
Add armed security guards North Hollywood parking lot
Add more lanes on all freeways
Remove call boxes, people now have cell phones
Complete the 110 through Downtown Los Angeles
Make lanes on freeways for motorcycle riders
Add more expanding freeways, toll ways and roadways
Finish the Sound Wall
Stop funding expensive and inefficient rail and improve road and freeway
options
Accessibility/Rideshare e Add more routes throughout the city for disabled passengers
Add more wheelchair access
More coordination with muni operators to gain senior and disabled ridership
« Keep people with disabilities in mind when creating programs or considering
budget expenditures

Positive Feedback

Responsible Spending

Safety & Security

Streets & Highways

Advertising e Use unused space for advertising and generating revenues
Metro’s branding and PR materials are great

e Use marketing money to educate the public and promote transit use instead of
driving

e  More advertising of public transit along heavily congested streets and
highways




Workshops & Meetings

e Metro Service Councils

e Citizens Advisory Council

e Technical Advisory Committee

e Bus Operations Subcommittee

e Local Transit Systems Subcommittee

e Streets & Freeways Subcommittee

e Policy Advisory Committee (PAC)

e Valley Industry & Commerce Association (VICA) Transportation Committee
e BizFed

Interactive Budget Tool

The interactive Online Budgeting Tool engaged the public by asking a series of questions on
transportation priorities to develop a customized Metro budget. Respondents were able to see
the budgetary impact for their choices interactively and include narrative comments to further
express their feedback and concerns. The budget tool allowed Metro to receive comments from
a larger portion of the general public, including those who are not Metro riders.

The Online Budget Tool focused on five key areas: Transportation Priorities, Bus & Rail
Improvement, Active Transportation, Streets & Highways, and Budget Balance.

Below are general results of the survey:

o 77% of the respondents favored Metro improving rail services

e 41% of respondents favored better pedestrian crossings on busy intersections

e 40% of the respondents were willing to cut service to balance the budget by reducing
service on less heavily used bus line

When asked about which freeway they would like to see ExpressLanes expanded to, 30% of
respondents selected: do not expand ExpressLanes.

The results of this survey helps Metro get a snapshot on the public’s ranking of their
transportation priorities. Comments and feedback are being gathered and evaluated to help
shape the budget and Metro’s priorities.
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BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2019 (FY19) BUDGET

ACTION:  ADOPT THE FY19 BUDGET

RECOMMENDATION

CONSIDER:

A. ADOPTING the proposed FY19 Budget as presented in the budget document (provided in a
separate transmittal and posted on metro.net); and

B. APPROVING the Life of Project (LOP) budgets for new capital projects with LOP exceeding
$5 million, included in the proposed FY19 Budget and presented in Attachment A; and

C. APPROVING the Reimbursement Resolution declaring Metro’s intention to issue debt in FY19
for capital projects, as shown in Attachment B, with the provision that actual debt issuance will
require separate Board approval; and

D. AMEND the proposed budget to include $2,000,000 for Expo Phase 1 and $20,624,400 for
Expo Phase 2, as approved by Expo Construction Authority for fiscal year 2019, for a total
addition of $22,624,400; and

E. AMEND the proposed budget to include $25,000,000 for farebox upgrade, as approved by the
Board on April 18, 2018; and

F. AMEND the proposed budget to include $500,000 to begin the draft environmental study of
the Crenshaw Northern Extension project upon identification of the preferred alternatives
identified by the Board for this corridor

ISSUE
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California Public Utilities Code Section 130105 requires Metro to adopt an annual budget to manage
the revenues and expenses of the agency’s projects and programs. The budget is the legal
authorization to obligate and spend funds and to implement Board policy. It includes all operating,
capital, planning and programming, subsidy funds, debt service requirements, and general fund
activities for the fiscal year. Budget detail is a management plan for financial activity and is prepared
at the fund, project, department, and expenditure level. The legal level of control is at the fund level.
Total annual expenditures cannot exceed the final appropriation by the Board except for capital
expenditures, which is authorized on a life-of-project basis.

Copies of the proposed budget were made available to the public on May 1, 2018, both electronically
at www.metro.net and through the Records Management Center (RMC) at RMC@metro.net. Printed
copies of the budget document were also made available at the RMC on the plaza level of the
Gateway building on May 1, 2018. The public hearing is scheduled for May 16, 2018. Advance public
notification of this hearing was issued through advertisements posted in over two dozen news
publications on April 11" and May 1%, 2018.

BUDGET MESSAGE

The transportation landscape of Los Angeles (LA) County is changing. Metro is leading the change
with groundbreaking, expansive projects designed to invigorate our current infrastructure. As our
population grows, mounting congestion stands in our way. Therefore, Congestion Reduction, along
with overall Customer Experience, is Metro’s top priority to improve the quality of life for LA County
residents.

Through enhanced transit services and an ever-growing list of innovative new transportation
initiatives, we aim to relieve congestion by focusing on the larger mobility picture. This will require
addressing the issue of connectivity across all modes and all trip purposes. As we work to integrate
trips made by private vehicles and transit with better first/last mile connections, we are moving closer
to a transportation network that accommodates the mobility needs of all residents and visitors in LA
County.

Metro’s goal in the coming year is to move more people onto transit by making meaningful
improvements to the services we provide. In order to appeal to a wider audience and encourage
transit use among those who have never used our system, we must create a new customer
experience. As a direct approach, we are committed to enhance our transit services by taking
advantage of new technologies, such as MicroTransit, more advanced mobile apps, and better real-
time information. While we improve overall service and tackle congestion with a comprehensive
transportation strategy, it follows that increased ridership will be a natural outcome. Once we prove
that Metro is safe, clean, easy to use, and efficient, we can make sure LA keeps on moving.
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DISCUSSION

The proposed $6.6 billion budget for FY19 is balanced and aligns resources in a fiscally responsible
manner to achieve the following goals:

1. Advance safety and security for our customers, the public, and Metro employees
2.

Exercise fiscal discipline to ensure financial stability

3. Plan and deliver capital projects on time and on budget while increasing opportunities for small

©COeNSO A

business development and innovation

Improve the customer experience and expand access to transportation options

Increase transit use and ridership

Implement an industry-leading state of good repair program

Invest in workforce development

Promote extraordinary innovation

Contribute to the implementation of agencywide and departmental Affirmative Action and
Equal Employment Opportunity goals

As part of the performance management process, Metro will monitor progress throughout the year
relative to the Agency goals using measurements such as budget variance, Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) target achievement, Project Milestone achievement and cost savings and new
revenue generation through the risk allocation matrix (RAM). This reinforces Metro’s commitment to
strategic monitoring of performance and the improvement of accountability.
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Resources Summary

FY19

FY18 Prelim FY18-FY19 FY18-FY19
Resources (§ in Millions) Budget Budget $Change % Change
1| Sales Tax, TDA, and STA $ 36912 $39802 |8 2890 7. 8%
2 | Federal, State and Local Grants 89859 997.3 11.4 1.2%
3 | Passanger Fares 302 6 3026 - 0.0%
4 | ExpressLanes, Advertising, and Other Revenues 137.7 158.1 204 14.8%

Other Reimbursement Revenues'" 11643 11244 (39.9) -3.4%
Total Budget $ 62817 $ 65626 $  280.9

"ncludes bond proceeds, Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFI&) loan drawdown and prior vear commitment

Resources %
of FY19 Budget

Expresslanes,
Advertising, and Other
Revenues

2% Other Reimbursement
Revenues(1)
17%

The FY19 Proposed Budget ensures resources available to meet the planned Metro program and
project delivery for the coming fiscal year. Revenue projections are built on historical sales tax growth
cycles, accepted forecasting sources and Metro’s 30 year actual sales tax receipts. The total FY19
budget planned resources is $280.9 million or 4.5% greater than FY18.

e Sales Tax, TDA, and STA increases $289 million or 7.8% in total, due to the following 2
reasons:
- There is a $98 million or 3.4% projected increase for Prop A, C and Measure R sales
tax as well as TDA revenues. Measure M increase is 5.5% more at 8.9%, or $68.8
million, reflecting allowances for FY18 Measure M inaugural year of lower than
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anticipated sales tax receipts.

- STA and State Senate Bill 1 (SB1) increase by $122 million or 204% based on State
Controllers’ Office (SCO) estimates and new SB1 supplemental funding for transit and
state of good repair.

e Federal, State and Local Grants are at a modest $11 million increase or 1.2%, reflecting
related capital expense activity.

e Passenger Fare revenues to remain flat due to level ridership & fare per boarding estimates.

e ExpressLanes, Advertising, and Other Revenues are increasing $20.4 million or 14.8% in total,
primarily due to the addition of Green Funds and increasing CNG credits for FY19.

e Other Reimbursement Revenues is $39.9 million or 3.4% lower in total based on timing of
project schedules. This includes bond proceeds, sales tax carryover, and Transportation

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan drawdowns which are backed by future
expected sales tax.
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Expenditure Summary

In FY19, Metro is poised to lead the ongoing transformation of Los Angeles County, with a bold plan
to push the region to new heights. This year, we will continue our rapid progress toward achieving
the vision of Measure M, with over a dozen transit expansion projects in various stages of planning,
groundbreaking, and construction. We are also focused on the rejuvenation of our existing lines and
facilities, as we move to pilot an electric bus fleet and continue major rehabilitation efforts on the Blue

Line, our oldest rail line.
FY19
FY18 Prelim FY18-FY19 FY18-FY19
Expenditures by Program Type ($ in Millions) Budget Budget §Change % Change
1| Transportation Infrastructure Development $ 19872 $ 19877 |% 0.5 0.0%
2 | Metro Transit — Operations, Maintenance, & Regional Operating Services 1,755.4 1,7955 401 2.3%
3| Metro Transit - SGR & Other Asset Improvements 4319 4930 611 14.1%
4| Subsidy Funding Programs 1,2433 1,333.0 897 7.2%
5| Regional Rail 178.4 179.0 06 0.3%
6 | Congestion Management 113.0 1273 14.3 12.6%
7| General Planning & Programs 133.5 167.4 33.9 25.4%
2| Debt Service 383.9 416.6 327 8.5%
3| Oversight & Admin 552 63.3 8.2 14.8%
Total Budget $ 62817 § 65626 $ 280.9 4.5%
Expenditures % of FY19 Budget
General Planning & | Debt Service, 6% |
Programs, 3% | ﬂ— Oversight & Admin, 1%
Congestion Management, e
2%
T 3 = Transportation
|Reglonal Rail, 3% Infrastructure
Development, 30%
20%
Assetlmprovements, 8%
Metro Transit - Operations
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The total budget increase from FY18 to FY19 is $281 million or 4.5%. The major differences are
addressed in program categories below which include the assumption for CPI increase of 2.25%.

Transportation Infrastructure Development remains steady and supports Measure R and M
projects such as Westside Purple Line Extension, including the Division 20 expansion,
Regional Connector and Crenshaw LAX projects.

Metro Transit - Bus and Rail Operations & Maintenance has a 5.1% increase from FY18 due
to the new labor contracts and additional Revenue Service Hours (RSH) needed to support
bus bridges for the “New Blue” rehabilitation project and special events.

o Bus Revenue Service Hours (RSH) increases by 104,000 hours or 1.5%, due to Bus
bridges for Blue Line closures related to the “New Blue® rehabilitation project and minor
service adjustments to relieve overcrowding.

o Rail RSH increases by 2,000 hours or 0.2%, due to minor service adjustments for 3-car
consists on the Gold Line and headway increases on the Green line during the AM
peak; increases mostly offset by reductions due to Blue Line closures for the New Blue
project.

Metro Transit - State of Good Repair (SGR) & Other Asset Improvements is at a 4% increase
from FY18 due to piloting the conversion of the bus fleet to Electric/Zero Emission Buses
(ZEB), rehabilitation of the Blue Line, system upgrades, and improving customer experience.
Subsidy Funding Programs increases by $89.6 million, or 7.2%, primarily due to increased
funding from growth in sales tax revenues and new SB1 funding.

Regional Rail remains constant with continuing operating and capital support of the Metrolink
commuter rail system and the Metro managed Regional Rail.

Congestion Management is increasing by $14 million, or 13%, primarily due to a service
provider and contract renewal rate change.

General Planning & Programs increases by $31 million, or 25%, due to the expansion of
bikeshare, LA River Bikepath, Rail to Rail/River, Union Station improvements and Public
Private Partnerships (P3).

Debt Service increases by $33 million , or 9% due to repayment of FY18 proceeds issued as
previously approved by the Board.

Oversight & Admin is a $6 million increase, or 15%, due to continued ramp up of support for
carrying out Measure M initiatives as well as cost inflation factors.

The labor cost increase reflects rising cost inflation, living wage standard increases and labor
market contraction. Wage increases and health/welfare benefits for represented employees
are based on Collective Bargaining Agreements; salary increases for non-represented
employees are expected to be in line with represented employees at a 4% increase over FY18
and is merit based. Non-represented medical/dental benefits reflect costs previously approved

by the Board.
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FTE Summary

The FY19 proposed budget includes requests for 79 non-represented FTE additions and up to 170
represented FTE additions.

A summary of the requested FTEs is shown in the table below.

Mon-Represented FTEs

FY18 Budget 1,601
Congestion Management 3
Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service 11
Debt Service 1
General Planning & Program 1
Measure M Initiatives Support, Oversight & Admin 26
Metro Operations and Support 17
MR/MM Planning Studies 16
Westside Subway Ext Sect 1, 2, 3 4
FY18 vs FY19 Change 79
FY19 Proposed 1,680
Represented FTEs
FY18 Budget 8,367
Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service 83
Operating Bus Service 81
Property Maintenance 2
Metro Programs Support, Oversight & Admin 4
FY18 vs FY19 Change 170
FY19 Proposed 8,537

{1} The F¥19 Proposed Represented FTE's will not exceed 170 and is

subject to change based on further service level odjustments.

Total Non-Represented FTE increase of 79 primarily due to Crenshaw project and other

capital projects support, Metro operations, and continuing Measure M initiatives and oversight.
Total Represented FTE increase of up to 170 primarily due to Crenshaw Pre-Revenue Service
and increase in bus service for “New Blue” rehabilitation bus bridges.
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Life of Project (LOP) Budgets

Projects greater than $1 million with LOP budget increases and new projects in excess of $5 million
must be approved by the Board in separate Board actions.

Attachment A includes a detailed listing of new capital projects for FY19 with LOP in excess of $5
million. These projects are included in the proposed FY19 budget but do require LOP approval by the
Board, as requested by Recommendation B of this report.

Reimbursement Resolution

Per Federal tax law, bond proceeds can only be used for expenses incurred after the issuance of
bonds. Metro must pass a resolution indicating the intent to issue bonds at a later date for the
expenditures described in the reimbursement resolution to be reimbursed for expenses incurred
before the bond issue. See Attachment B for anticipated expenditures in the budget related to
proceeds from future bond issuance.

Public Outreach

Soliciting meaningful input from the public and stakeholders is critical to budget development. The
comprehensive outreach program for FY19 included many opportunities to provide feedback online
or by telephone in addition to in-person meetings. These meetings included Metro Service Councils,
Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), Technical Advisory Committee, Bus Operations Subcommittee,
Local Transit Systems Subcommittee, Streets & Freeways Subcommittee, Policy Advisory Committee
(PAC), Valley Industry & Commerce Association (VICA) Transportation Committee, and BizFed. This
allowed for the greatest level of engagement and direct dialogue with stakeholders.

To encourage participation, the times and locations of public workshops were advertised through
multiple channels, including the Metro website, “take ones” on board vehicles, newspaper
advertising, messages on hold, e-blasts, and social media ads. Outreach efforts for FY19 also
included two Telephone Town Hall sessions and an interactive Online Budget Tool, making it
convenient for LA County residents to participate in the budget process without physical presence at
a meeting. A summary of public outreach efforts and comments received is shown in Attachment C.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The proposed FY19 budget (provided in a separate transmittal) at $6.6 billion, plus the following
amendments: $2 million for Expo Phase 1, $20.6 million for Expo Phase 2, $25 million for farebox
upgrades, and $500,000 for Crenshaw Northern Extension, is balanced, and includes expenditures
and appropriates the resources necessary to fund them. The proposed budget demonstrates Metro’s
ongoing commitment to meeting its capital and operating obligations, which is a requirement
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necessary in order to continue to receive subsidies from the state and federal governments and to
administer regional transportation funding to local cities and municipal operators.

NEXT STEPS

Upon Board authorization and adoption of the FY19 budget, staff will start make funds available for
the planned transit and transportation programs outlined in this document and be programmed to
fund regional transit/transportation partnering agencies, cities and recipients.

Monitoring the FY 19 budget performance will be a year-round ongoing effort. Staff will conduct
quarterly performance management reviews and track metrics to reinforce accountability and
budgetary control. There will be a mid-year budget assessment to evaluate the budget’s alignment to
agency priorities and actual performance. In addition, continuous improvements will be implemented
to the process and regular updates will be reported to the Board.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - FY19 New Capital Projects
Attachment B - Reimbursement Resolution of Metro for FY19
Attachment C - FY19 Public Outreach
Prepared by: Office of Management & Budget Staff
Irene Fine, Deputy Executive Officer, Finance, (213) 922-4420

Reviewed by: Nalini Ahuja, Chief Financial Officer, (213) 922-3088
% A
/4
Phillip A. Washington
Chief Executive Officer '
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FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND COMPONENT
AUDITS
ACTION: RECEIVE AND FILE

RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE AND FILE the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (Metro) basic
financial statements and component financial statement audits completed by Crowe Horwath LLP
(Crowe) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

ISSUE

Metro is required to be audited annually by independent certified public accountants. The resulting
reports include Metro’s basic financial statements and following component audits for the year ended
June 30, 2017:

» Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority for the year ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent auditors’ SAS 114 letter covering required communications;

» Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Report Fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures on the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s Federal Funding Allocation Data for the
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017,

» Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
with the California Code of Regulations (Section 6667) and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
Report on 50% Expenditure Limitation Schedule for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority Transportation Development Act Operations Agency for the year
ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
with the California Code of Regulations (Section 6640-6662) and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and Report on Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the
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Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation Development Act &
Prop 1B PTMISEA Planning Agency for the year ended June 30, 2017;

> Independent Auditors’ Report on the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance Special Revenue Fund’s basic financial statements as of and for the
years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on the Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) basic financial statements as of
June 30, 2017;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies’ (A
Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) financial
statements for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016; and

» Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance with Rules and Regulations of the Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and Report on Internal Control over Compliance for the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s compliance with the LCTOP
Guidelines for the year ended June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION

Metro’s basic financial statements include our audited financial statements, supplemental information
and unmodified opinion from Crowe, the independent auditor. Crowe issued unmodified opinions
(clean; no findings) on all audit reports for FY17. However, during the FY17 audit process, Crowe
reissued the FY15 and FY16 Single Audit reports to include a finding related to a federal
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program. In FY15, the TIFIA
program was a new federal loan program for Metro, in which the agency pays using local funding. As
such, Metro erroneously excluded TIFIA program expenditures of $37,477,492 and $467,796,377 for
FY15 and FY16 respectively from the federal expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards (SEFA). Instead, the amounts were presented as Local Share
expenditures on the SEFA, but should have been presented as federal expenditures.

As a result, Crowe considered the finding to be a material weakness for the FY15 and the FY16
Single Audit reports. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. As of the March 28,
2018 reissuance report date, Metro already corrected the issue by properly reporting the amounts
under Federal Expenditures.

Due to the considerable size of the document, we have not attached Metro’s basic financial
statements. Instead, as a savings measure a hard copy of the Basic Financial Statements is on file
with the Board Secretary and is also available on the Metro website.

<https://media.metro.net/about us/finance/images/fy17 cafr.pdf>

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Crowe Horwath’s Management Letter dated March 29, 2018
Attachment B - Independent auditors’ SAS 114 letter covering required communications;
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Attachment C - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017;

Attachment D - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Federal Funding Allocation Data
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 (With
Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures Thereon);

Attachment E - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation
Development Act Operations Agency Year ended June 30, 2017;

Attachment F - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation
Development Act & Prop 1B PTMISEA Planning Agency for the year ended June 30, 2016;
Attachment G - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2017 and 2016 (With Independent
Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment H - Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority) Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 (With
Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment | - Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (A Component Unit of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) Financial Statements and Other Supplementary
Information June 30, 2017 and 2016 (With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment J - Independent Auditor’s Report for Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority’s compliance with the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the year ended
June 30, 2017

Attachment K - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Attachment L - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016

Prepared by: Lauren Choi, Sr. Manager, Audit
(213) 922-3926
Monica Del Toro, Audit Support Manager
(213) 922-7494

Reviewed by: Diana Estrada, Chief Auditor
(213) 922-2161

g

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Los Angeles, California

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
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Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise
LACMTA's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2017. Our
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit
pension plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Retirement Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA'’s financial statements. The financial
statements of the defined benefit pension plan of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority Retirement Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA'’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of nhoncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/mw-(_ H—b»\..”bﬂu L—LP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
March 29, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of LACMTA'’s major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. LACMTA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA'’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.




Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA’s
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2017, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Crowe Hrawenn LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in Note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years. LACMTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance. For CFDA #20.233, $90,700,940 included in the Schedule represents current
year loan proceeds that were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 - MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in
Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

(Continued)



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 6 —- COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program - Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA 20.500/20.507 / 20.525

CFDA 20.319

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

Yes

X No

X None reported

X No

X No

X None reported

Federal Transit Cluster

High-Speed Rail Corridors and Intercity
Passenger Rail Service — Capital
Assistance Grants - ARRA

$

3,000,000

Yes

X No

(Continued)
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

SECTION Il - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

None

SECTION Il - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS PART 200, UNIFORM
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
FEDERAL AWARDS

None

11.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not presented by management as federal expenditures and instead was reported in the Local
Share expenditures column of the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards.

Status: This matter is considered resolved as of March 29, 2018.

12.
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Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

Independent Accountant’s Report
on Applying Agreed Upon Procedures

Management and the Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data
reported to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10) of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (the Authority) annual National Transit Database (NTD) report:

e A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions. The
correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.

e A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis, and the data gathering is an ongoing
effort.

e Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review
and audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report. The data are
fully documented and securely stored.

e A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that
the recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and
signed by a supervisor, as required.

e The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or otherwise meet FTA requirements.

e The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles
data and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, appear to be accurate.

e Data is consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about the Authority’s
operations.

We have applied the procedures, as described in Attachment A, to the data contained in the
accompanying FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Such procedures, which were agreed to
and specified by FTA in the Declarations section of the 2017 Policy Manual and were agreed to by the
Authority management and the Board of Directors, were applied to assist the Authority in evaluating
whether the Authority complied with the standards described in the first paragraph of this part and that the
information included in the NTD report FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 is presented in
conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and Records and Reporting
System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as
presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. The District management is responsible for the FFA-10 and
compliance with NTD requirements. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the
parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the
procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any
other purpose.



The procedures in Attachment A were applied separately to each of the information systems used to
develop the reported actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM), fixed guideway (FG), directional route miles
(DRM), passenger miles traveled (PMT), and operating expenses (OE) of the Authority for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2017 for each of the following modes:

Motor Bus — directly operated

Motor Bus — purchased transportation
Rapid Bus — directly operated

Heavy Rail — directly operated

Light Rail — directly operated

Vanpool — purchased transportation

In performing the procedures, except for the information identified in Attachment A to this report, no
matters came to our attention that would be required to be reported to you regarding the information
included in the NTD report on the FFA-10 Form for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. This agreed-
upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an
examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion,
respectively, on conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and
Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January
15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or
conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that
would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the information described above, and does
not extend to the Authority’s financial statements taken as a whole, or the forms in the Authority’s NTD
report other than the FFA-10 form, for any date or period.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, the management of
the Authority, and the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Crowse. l""b-«..-,‘h. LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 31, 2017



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

FTA Suggested Procedures:

a.

Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data
in accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal
Register, dated January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. If procedures are not
written, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising the NTD
data preparation and maintenance.

Step performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures (written or informal) with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising
the preparation and maintenance of NTD data to determine:

e The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and

e Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent
with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, dated
January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual.

Step performed without exception.

Ask these same personnel about the retention policy that the transit agency follows as to source
documents supporting NTD data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10).

Step performed without exception.

Based on a description of the transit agency's procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify all
the source documents that the transit agency must retain for a minimum of three years. For each type
of source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document exists
for each of these periods.

Selected source documents from three different months in fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014
(7/3/2013, 12/20/2013, 3/8/2014, 11/13/2014, 1/8/2015, 5/8/2015, 8/13/2015, 12/8/2015, 4/7/2016) to
ensure they were retained for a minimum of three years. We observed that the source
documents were maintained for each fiscal year as required.

Discuss the system of internal controls. Inquire whether separate individuals (independent of the
individuals preparing source documents and posting data summaries) review the source documents
and data summaries for completeness, accuracy, and reasonableness and how often these
individuals perform such reviews.

Per inquiry with the management, the individuals reviewing source documents are
independent of individuals preparing the information and the review is done on a periodic
basis depending on the data being reviewed.

Select a haphazard sample of source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures are
present as required by the system of internal controls. If supervisors' signatures are not required,
inquire how personnel document supervisors’ review.

Selected a haphazard sample of 103 source documents, noting the required approval on all
source documents. Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

Obtain the worksheets used to prepare the final data that the transit agency transcribes onto the
Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form. Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets to
the periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the
summaries.

We obtained the worksheets and agreed the data on the worksheets to the summaries
provided and verified the arithmetical accuracy of the summaries without exception.

Discuss the procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles traveled (PMT) data in
accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure is one of
the methods specifically approved in the 2017 Policy Manual.

For the rail and van pool modes, the Authority utilized a statistical sampling method as
described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A. For the motor bus modes, the Authority utilized a 100%
count verification for passenger trips and an estimate of passenger miles based on a
statistical sampling method as described in FTA Circulars 2710.2A.

Discuss with transit agency staff, the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PMT
data every third year. Determine whether the transit agency meets NTD criteria that allow transit
agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PMT data every third year rather than
annually. Specifically:

a. According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an urbanized area
(UZA) of less than 500,000 population.

b. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes
in annual maximum revenue service (VOMS) (in any size UZA).

c. Service purchased from a seller is included in the transit agency's NTD report.

d. For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation
for the most recent mandatory sampling year (2017) and determine that statistical
sampling was conducted and meets the 95% confidence and +10% precision
requirements.

e. Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PMT for the current report year.

Per inquiry with the Authority management, the Authority does not meet any of the three
criteria that allows transit agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating passenger
mile data every third year. Therefore, the Authority conducts statistical sampling annually as
described in procedure h.

Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PMT data used by the transit agency.
Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample
of runs for recording PMT data. If the transit agency used average trip length, determine that the
universe of runs was the sampling frame. Determine that the methodology used to select specific
runs from the universe resulted in a haphazard selection of runs. If the transit agency missed a
selected sample run, determine that a replacement sample run was haphazard. Determine that the
transit agency followed the stated sampling procedure.

Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

Select a haphazard sample of the source documents for accumulating PMT data and determine that
the data are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select
a haphazard sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the
selected periods. List the accumulation periods that were tested. Test the arithmetical accuracy of
the summarization.

Selected a haphazard sample of 72 source documents across all modes from all twelve
months in fiscal year 2017, used for accumulating passenger miles traveled (PMT) data and
determined they were complete and mathematically accurate. We tested the average trip
length and the total trips for each of the samples and recomputed the accumulations for each
period. Step performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle
miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and identify that
stated procedures are followed. Select a haphazard sample of source documents used to record
charter bus service and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.

Step performed without exception.

. For actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, document the collection and recording methodology
and identify that deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation. This is
accomplished as follows:

e [f actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed
trips. Select a haphazard sample of the days that service is operated, and re-compute the daily
total of missed trips and missed VRMs. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary.

e |f actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate
and subtract deadhead mileage. Select a haphazard sample of the hubodometer readings and
determine that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are
applied as prescribed. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary of intermediate
accumulations.

o |f actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select haphazard samples of the vehicle logs and
determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA
definitions.

Vehicle logs are used to compute the VRM data for non-fixed routes. For fixed routes, the
Authority uses monthly services reports and daily loss service records to record any missed
trips. The VP-PT mode does not have any deadhead miles. Selected a haphazard sample of
72 source documents across all modes, except for VP-PT, and recalculated the VRMs for the
sample of trips, excluding deadhead miles. Step performed without exception.

For rail modes, obtain and read the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRM's and identify
that locomotive miles are not included in the computation.

Step performed without exception. There are no locomotives.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

o. If fixed guideway or High Intensity Bus directional route miles (FG or HIB DRM) are reported,
interview the person responsible for maintaining and reporting the NTD data whether the operations
meet the FTA definition of fixed guideway (FG) or High Intensity Bus (HIB) in that the service is:

e Rail, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR) or
e Bus (MB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of-way (ROW), and

0 Access is restricted

0 Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service D
or worse on parallel adjacent highway, and

0 Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy
vehicles (HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP), carpools) must demonstrate safe operation (see
Fixed Guideway Segments form (P-40))

o High Occupancy / Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FHWA requirements for traffic flow and use of
toll revenues, and that the transit agency has provided to NTD a copy of the State’s
certification to the US Secretary of Transportation that it has established a program for
monitoring, assessing and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility with HO/T lanes.

Step performed without exception.

p. Discuss the measurement of FG and HIB DRM with the person reporting NTD data and determine
that the he or she computed mileage in accordance with the FTA definitions of FG/HIB and DRM.
Inquire of any service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRMs. If a
service change resulted in a change in overall DRMs, re-compute the average monthly DRMs, and
reconcile the total to the FG/HIB DRM reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2017.

g. Inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report year. If these
interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), the
following apply:

e Report DRMs for the segment(s) for the entire report year if the interruption is less than 12
months in duration. Report the months of operation on the FG/HIB segments form as 12. The
transit agency should document the interruption.

e If the improvements cause a service interruption on the FG-DRMs lasting more than 12
months, the transit agency should contact their validation analyst to discuss. FTA will make a
determination on how the DRMs should be reported.

Per inquiry of management there were no interruptions in service during fiscal year 2017 that
would require a change in reporting.

r.  Measure FG/HIB DRM from maps or by retracing route.
We measured all of the FG/HIB maps. Step performed without exception.

s. Discuss whether other public transit agencies operate service over the same FG/HIB as the transit
agency. If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the other transit agency (or
agencies) such that the DRMs for the segment of FG/HIB are reported only once to the NTD on the
Federal Funding Allocation form. Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PMT, and OE for
the service operated over the same FG/HIB.

Per inquiry of management, the Authority is the approved operator for all of their FG and the
Authority is reporting their actual VRM, PMT, and OE for their services. Step performed
without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

Review the FG/HIB segments form. Discuss the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any
segments added in the 2017 report year with the persons reporting NTD data. This is the
commencement date of revenue service for each FG/HIB segment. Determine that the date reported
is the date that the agency began revenue service. This may be later than the Original Date of
Revenue Service if the transit agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for the
2017 report year, the Agency Revenue Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2017
fiscal year. Segments are grouped by like characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes,
under the State of Good Repair (§5337) and Bus and Bus Facilities (§5339) programs, the 7-year age
requirement for fixed guideway/High Intensity Bus segments is based on the report year when the
segment is first reported by any NTD transit agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first
time in the current report year. Even if a transit agency can document an Agency Revenue Service
Start Date prior to the current NTD report year, the FTA will only consider segments continuously
reported to the NTD.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2017.
Compare operating expenses with audited financial data after reconciling items are removed.
Step performed without exception.

If the transit agency purchases transportation (PT) services, interview the personnel reporting the
NTD data on the amount of PT-generated fare revenues. The PT fare revenues should equal the
amount reported on the Contractual Relationship form (B-30).

We agreed the fare revenue for the vanpool and motor bus PT without exception.

If the transit agency's report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those
services is not included, obtain a copy of the Independent Auditor Statement for Federal Funding
Allocation (IAS-FFA) data of the PT service. Attach a copy of the statement to the report. Note as an
exception if the transit agency does not have an Independent Auditor Statement for the PT data.

We inquired to management and noted that the report does include PT from private operators,
but that an Independent Auditor Statement is not required since the Authority is a public
transportation provider and the PT expenditures are included on the B-30 form of the NTD.

If the transit agency purchases transportation services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and
determine that the contract specifies the public transportation services to be provided; the monetary
consideration obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; the
period covered by the contract (and that this period overlaps the entire, or a portion of, the period
covered by the transit agency’s NTD report); and is signed by representatives of both parties to the
contract. Interview the person responsible for retention of the executed contract, and determine that
copies of the contracts are retained for three years.

We obtained a copy of the PT contract for each provider and noted that the contract included
a description of the services to be provided, the monetary consideration obligated by the
Authority for the service and the period covered by the contract and that this period is the
same as, or a portion of, the period covered by the Authority’s NTD report; and is signed by
representatives of both parties to the contract. Management stated that copies of the
executed contracts are retained for the last three years, as applicable.
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between an UZA and a non-UZA,
inquire of the procedures for allocation of statistics between UZAs and non-UZAs. Obtain and review
the FG segment worksheets, route maps, and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the
statistics, and determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct.

Per management, the Authority provides most of their services in one UZA and therefore it is
all allocated to that one UZA. Additionally, all of the services provided are in urbanized areas
and allocations to non-urbanized areas are not required, therefore the procedure is not
applicable.

Compare the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form to data from the prior
report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. For actual
VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10%, or FG DRM data that
have increased or decreased. Interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of
operations that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period.

We compared and agreed the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form
(Form FFA-10) to comparable data for the prior report year and calculated the percentage
change from the prior year to the current year. For any current year data that increased or
decreased by more than 10%, we inquired to the Authority and documented the explanations
for the variances.

The auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests
performed in the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of
three years following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which are
agreed to by the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify the
additional procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were
agreed to by the transit agency and the auditor but not by the FTA.

Step performed without exception.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), a
component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
CPC'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the CPC, as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.



Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 and 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2017
on our consideration of the CPC'’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CPC’s internal control over financial reporting and

| Crowe [P U LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 4, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CPC’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the CPC's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CPC's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/W'WC— l LDVW(J'-’ LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Los Angeles, California
October 4, 2017



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

As management of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), we offer readers of our financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the CPC for the
fiscal year ended June 30,2017. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the readers
in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the CPC.

We encourage the readers to consider the information presented herein in conjunction with
the financial statements beginning on page 7. The financial statements, the notes to the
financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were prepared by management and
are the responsibility of management.

All amounts are expressed in thousands of dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Background

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed on March 23, 2012, for the sole
purpose of participating in financing public transportation projects of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA).

The CPC currently serves as the conduit borrower as part of a financing agreement with the
United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under its Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program to partially finance the
construction of LACMTA’s Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project).

Financial Highlights

e In September, 2012, the CPC secured a $545,900 TIFIA loan from the USDOT to partially
finance the Project. The loan under the TIFIA program is secured by Measure R sales tax
revenues allocated to the Project. As of June 30, 2017, the CPC has drawn down the full
amount of TIFIA loan proceeds.

e Total assets of $566,769 represent advances to LACMTA and total liabilities of $566,769
consist of the principal amount of $545,900 and interest accretion of $20,869 on the
TIFIA loan. Therefore, there is no net position as of June 30, 2017.

e Total expenses of $21 consisted mostly of loan fees and other administration charges,
which were reimbursed by LACMTA.

e In fiscal year 2017, total drawdowns from TIFIA loan amounted to $65,835. As of June
30, 2017, $1.4 billion has been expended on the Project, which is recorded in LACMTA'’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) under the Capital Assets section of the
Statement of Net Position of the Enterprise fund.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis serves as an introduction to the CPC’s basic
financial statements. The CPC’s basic financial statements are: 1) the Statement of Net
Position, 2) the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position, 3) the
Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The CPC’s basic financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The CPC is structured as an enterprise
fund. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when
they are incurred. See the Notes to the Financial Statements for the summary of the CPC’s
significant accounting policies.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the CPC’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents the results of the CPC’s operations.
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the cash flows generated by the CPC to meet its
current maturing obligations. The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic
financial statements.

Presented below are the condensed Statement of Net Position and the condensed Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position as of and for the year ended June 30,
2017.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Non-current assets $ 566,769
Total assets 566,769
Non-current liabilities 566,769
Total liabilities 566,769
Net position $ -

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Revenues $ 21
Expenses 21

Net income (loss) -

Changes in net position -

Net position - beginning of year -

Net position - end of year $ -




Crenshaw Project Corporation

(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets

Non-current assets
Advances to LACMTA

566,769

Total assets

566,769

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Notes payable

566,769

Total liabilities

566,769

Net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating revenues
Charges for services $

Operating expenses
Professional and technical services

21

21

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from LACMTA $

21

Payments to vendors
Net cash flows from operating activities

(21)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Proceeds from TIFIA loan
Advances to LACMTA

65,835
(65,835)

Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $

Non-cash financing activity:
Interest accretion on notes payable $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13,234



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and
other disclosures considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic
financial statements.

Unless otherwise stated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed for the specific purpose of securing a
loan from United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under the Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program for the construction of
LACMTA'’s Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project). The Project has an approved
life-of-project (LOP) budget of $2.05 billion that covers the design and construction of a new
8.5-mile double-track Light Rail Transit (LRT) line, including eight transit stations,
procurement of a minimum of 20 light rail vehicles, and the construction of a full service
maintenance facility known as the “Southwestern Yard.” The Project will extend from the
EXPO Line (at the intersection of Exposition and Crenshaw Boulevards) and the Metro Green
Line near the existing Aviation/LAX Station.

The CPC is governed by a Board of Directors (CPC Board) consisting of the same members of
the Board of Directors of LACMTA (Metro Board). The Chair, First-Chair and Second-Chair of
the Metro Board shall have the corresponding positions on the CPC Board. The Board
members may serve only as long as they are members of the Metro Board. Each Director
shall serve a term commensurate with his or her term on the Metro Board. The CPC is a
component unit of LACMTA because it is financially dependent upon LACMTA, and
LACMTA’s approval is needed for the CPC to expend its budgets or charges and issue long-
term debt. Although the CPC is a legally separate entity, it is in-substance part of LACMTA's
operations, and therefore the data from the CPC is included in LACMTA’s financial data.
These financial statements present only the CPC and do not purport to, and do not, present
fairly the financial position of LACMTA, as of June 30, 2017, or the changes in the financial
position for the year then ended.

Fund Accounting

The proprietary fund type is used to account for ongoing operations and activities similar to
those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or
useful for sound financial administration. The CPC uses the proprietary fund type to account
for the goods and services provided to LACMTA on a cost-reimbursement basis. Proprietary
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues include reimbursements from LACMTA for operating expenses. Operating
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Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

expenses include professional services and administrative expenses. The CPC applies all
applicable Government Accounting Standard Board (GASB) pronouncements in accounting
and reporting for its proprietary operations. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments, including
restricted assets, with an original maturity date of 90 days or less, are considered to be cash
and cash equivalents. Otherwise, they are considered to be investments.

Receivables and Payables

Interagency’ receivables/payables are amounts owed to/due from other LACMTA funds for
services performed. Payables are amounts due to vendors for goods or services received.

Note 2 - Advances to LACMTA

Advances to LACMTA consist of cash advances to partially finance the construction of the
Project. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of advances to LACMTA totaled
$566,769.

Note 3 - Notes Payable

In September 2012, the CPC secured a loan not to exceed $545,900 from the USDOT under
the TIFIA program to partially finance the construction of the Project. The loan, secured by a
portion of LACMTA'’s Measure R sales tax revenues allocated to the Project, bears interest at
2.43% per annum on the outstanding balance with maturity date of June 1, 2034. On each
June 1 and December 1, interest accrued in the six-month period ending on such date is
capitalized and added to the outstanding balance of the TIFIA loan. The principal amount is
payable in annual installments on June 1 of each year commencing on June 1, 2021, while the
interest payments are payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year
commencing on December 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the TIFIA
loan was $566,769.

11



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

The CPC’s annual debt service requirements (including interest accretion) are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ (13,914) $ 13914 $ -
2019 (14,196) 14,196 -
2020 (13,328) 13,328 -
2021 (59) 14,759 14,700
2022 8,619 14,781 23,400
2023-2027 107,487 69,813 177,300
2028-2032 312,329 45,270 357,599
2033-2034 179,831 6,449 186,280

$ 566,769 $ 192,510 $ 759,279

The annual debt service requirements were calculated based on allocation of loan
payments from the principal amount of $545,900.

12
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Crowe Horwath& Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies
(SAFE), a component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as
of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprises SAFE’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SAFE as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial position thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1,
2017 on our consideration of SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
CJ’WWC— ”DVWM’L LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 1, 2017



Crowe Horwath& Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE), a component unit of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise SAFE’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SAFE's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SAFE's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe e b LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 1, 2017



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

The management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Service Authority for Freeway
Emergencies (SAFE) presents an overview of SAFE’s financial activities during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016. Management encourages readers to consider information presented here in
conjunction with the financial statements (beginning on page 8). The basic financial statements, the notes to the
basic financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were prepared by management and are the
responsibility of management.

All dollar amounts are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Financial Highlights

. SAFE’s net position decreased by $3,580 or 15.95% compared to fiscal year 2016 mainly due to higher
expenditures incurred for the operation of the call box system and the continued development of
the Southern California 511. The favorable variance of $771 in actual receipts of vehicle registration
fees over budgeted amount was mainly due to an increase in vehicle registrations by the California
Department of Motor Vehicles from the previous year. The favorable variance of $1,940 in
administration and other expenditures under budgeted amount was mainly due to lower operating
subsidy to LACMTA for its freeway service project.

. Revenues are comprised of vehicle registration fees and investment earnings. Investments earnings
in fiscal year 2017 decreased by $283 or 66.75% compared to fiscal year 2016 mainly due to lower
cash balance available for participation in the LACMTA pooled investments.

° Expenditures increased by $1,395 or 13.16% compared to fiscal year 2016. The increase in expenditures
was mainly due to higher expenditures incurred for professional and technical services and advertising
for the operation of the call box system and the Southern California 511.

Overview of Financial Statements

This management’s discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to SAFE’s basic financial statements.
SAFE’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) the government-wide financial
statements; (2) the fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the basic financial statements. This report
also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of SAFE’s finances in a manner similar to
private sector entities. The government-wide financial statements consist of: (1) the statements of net position,
which present information on all of SAFE’s assets and liabilities with the difference being reported as net
position, and (2) the statements of activities, which depict the changes in net position during the year. Trends
of increasing or decreasing net position may serve as a useful indicator of financial health.

Fund financial statements represent the near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
The fund financial statements consist of: (1) the balance sheets, which present SAFE’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference being reported as fund balance; and (2) the statements of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance. This report presents the underlying events or activities of
the fund that affected the balance sheets.

The notes to the basic financial statements are various disclosures that accompany the government-wide
and fund financial statements in order to provide a full understanding of SAFE'’s finances.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

Analytical Overview

The table below shows the condensed schedule of net position as of June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015:

Governmental Activities
Schedule of Net Position

2017 2016 2015
Total assets $ 19,764 $ 23,387 $ 25,678
Total liabilities 890 933 1,119
Total net position $ 18,874 $ 22,454 $ 24,559

Total assets decreased by $3,623 or 15.49% in fiscal year 2017 and by $2,291 or 8.92% in fiscal year 2016.
This was due mainly to increases in expenditures incurred for its congestion relief operations and other
programs.

Total liabilities decreased by $43 or 4.61% in fiscal year 2017 and by $186 or 16.62% in fiscal year 2016
mainly due to lower accrued liabilities in program expenses.

The following table is a condensed schedule of activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and
2015:

Governmental Activities
Summary Schedule of Activities

2017 2016 2015

Program expenses, net of revenues:
Congestion relief operations $ 10,492 $ 8,310 $ 8,205
Subsidies to LACMTA 1,500 2,287 4,956
Total program expenses 11,992 10,597 13,161

General revenues:

License fees 8,271 8,068 7,834
Investment income 141 424 163
Total general revenues 8,412 8,492 7,997
Change in net position $ (3,580) $ (2,105) $ (5,164)




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

Factors Impacting Future Periods

SAFE anticipates continuing the operation and management of the call box system (fixed and mobile) and
Southern California 511. SAFE completed an additional phase of the fixed call box system restructuring as
well as the transition from 2G to 3G wireless capabilities during FY17. The cost to continue operating the
fixed call box system will decrease in FY18 with further reviews to be conducted for its continued operation.
The use of the mobile call box service is projected to increase slightly but the costs should be relatively stable
as the new contract for call answering services was recently awarded. The operational costs associated with
Southern California 511 will also decrease in FY18 due to the transition to a new system. The SoCal 511
operational costs are projected to remain relatively stable with any increases occurring as a result of new
service/functionality development and implementation. Finally, there may be a reduction to the annual
allocation in support of Metro Freeway Service Patrol due to the potential of obtaining additional new funds
from the State. SAFE will monitor this situation and will reduce its annual allocation as warranted after
discussions with LACMTA. Overall, it is anticipated that in the near term, the future costs will be relatively
stable.

Further Information

This report has been designed to provide all interested parties with a general overview of SAFE'’s financial
condition and related issues. Inquiries should be directed to the Accounting Department, One Gateway Plaza,
Mail Stop 99-20-7, Los Angeles, CA90012-2952.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statements of Net Position
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

2017 2016
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,029 $ 9,221
Investments 11,643 13,286
Intergovernmental receivable — 791
Interest receivable 92 89
Total assets 19,764 23,387
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 890 933
Net position:
Restricted 18,874 22,454
Total net position $ 18,874 $ 22,454

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statements of Activities

Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Program expenses, net of revenues:
Transit operations:
Congestion relief operations
Subsidies to LACMTA
Total program expenses

General revenues:
License fees
Investment income
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental Activities
2017 2016
$ 10,492 8,310
1,500 2,287
11,992 10,597
8,271 8,068
141 424
8,412 8,492
(3,580) (2,105)
22,454 24,559
$ 18,874 22,454




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Balance Sheets
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Intergovernmental receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Fund balance:

Restricted
Total liabilities and fund balance

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Revenue Fund
2017 2016

8,029 9,221
11,643 13,286
— 791
92 89
19,764 23,387
890 933
18,874 22,454
19,764 23,387




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
License fees
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Administration and other transportation projects
Subsidies to LACMTA

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Revenue Fund

2017 2016
8271 $ 8,068
141 424
8,412 8,492
10,492 8,310
1,500 2,287
11,992 10,597
(3,580) (2,105)
22,454 24,559
18,874 $ 22,454




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

The notes to the basic financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and other
disclosures considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic financial statements.

Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Reporting Entity

The Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) was created in February 1988 pursuant
to California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550 et. seq., and is responsible for the
operation, maintenance, and administration of the Los Angeles County Kenneth Hahn Call Box
system. Under the authority of the above section, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) is the designated SAFE for Los Angeles County.

As LACMTA'’s board is SAFE’s board, SAFE is a component unit of LACMTA and is included in
LACMTA'’s financial statements as a blended component unit.

(b) Operations

SAFE is responsible for the implementation, maintenance, operation, and administration of
motorist aid on the network of freeways, highways, and unincorporated county roads within Los
Angeles County. SAFE operates and maintains approximately 2,700 call boxes along 436 miles
of freeways, state highways, and selected county roads in Los Angeles County. SAFE also funds,
operates and manages the Southern California 511 traveler information system. This system
provides real-time and planned traffic, transit and other related traveler information to the
public via the phone, web and mobile application.

(c) Government-wide Financial Statements

SAFE’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net position, statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of SAFE and are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses, including
centralized expenses of a given function or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Licenses and
fines and investment earnings not considered program revenues are reported as general
revenues.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

(d)

(e)

1))

9)

Fund Accounting

SAFE utilizes fund accounting to report its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions or activities. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for SAFE'’s activities. The governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Additionally, the SAFE fund is considered a special revenue
governmental fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted for specific purposes. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, SAFE considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred
and a valid claim is presented.

Fund Balance and Net Position

Restricted fund balance and net position include amounts that can be spent only for specific
purposes stipulated by enabling legislation, by grants, creditors, or by regulations of other
governments. SAFE’s fund balance and net position are classified as restricted as they can only be
used in accordance with the provisions of the California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550
et. seq. by which the fund was created.

Budgetary Accounting

Enabling legislation and adopted policies and procedures provide that the SAFE Board of
Directors approve an annual budget. The Board of Directors conducts a public hearing for
discussion of the proposed annual budget prior to adoption of the final budget. Unexpended
appropriations lapse at year-end. The legal level of control is at the fund level, and expenses may
not exceed total appropriations without board approval. By policy, the board has provided
procedures for management to make revisions within operational or project budgets when there
is no net dollar impact to total appropriations. The budget is prepared on a generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) basis.

Cash and Investments

SAFE maintains a minimum balance with the Los Angeles County Treasurer’s external
investment pool. Balances in excess of $50 are withdrawn and deposited into the LACMTA
internal investment pool.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

(h) Receivables

Receivables are net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts which are determined
based on past experience. Receivables include license and fine revenue due from the State
Department of Motor Vehicles. As of June 30, 2016, SAFE had a receivable for license fees of $791.
No receivable was necessary as of June 30, 2017.

(i) Vehicle Registration Fees

Vehicle registration fees revenue is recognized when earned and is generated by a $1 (amount not in
thousands) per each car registered in Los Angeles County, which is collected by the State
Department of Motor Vehicles.

(j) Effects of New GASB Pronouncements

There were no new GASB Pronouncements applicable to SAFE for the year ended June 30, 2017.

(2) Cash and Investments

The following is a breakdown of SAFE’s cash and investments as of June 30,2017 and 2016.

2017 2016
LACMTA investment pool $ 18953 $ 21,834
LA County investment pool 719 673

$ 19,672 $ 22,507

SAFE’s cash balances are pooled with other LACMTA funds. The LACMTA Board of Directors provides
regulatory oversight for the LACMTA pool. Each fund maintains an equity interest in the pool and is
presented as cash and investments in the Statement of Net Position. The value of the position in the
investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The investment pool is not rated for purposes of
evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. Detailed information regarding the LACMTA's
pooled cash and investments can be found in the LACMTA Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). A copy of the LACMTA’s CAFR can be obtained by submitting a written request to the
Accounting Department, One Gateway Plaza, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2952.

SAFE’s cash balances are also pooled with other County funds and invested by the Los Angeles County
Treasurer. These funds are subject to withdrawal from the Treasurer’s pool upon demand. The
County Board of Supervisors provides regulatory oversight for the Los Angeles County Investment
Pool (LACIP). The value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The
investment pool is not rated for purposes of evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Detailed information regarding the County’s pooled cash and investments can be found in the County
of Los Angeles Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the County’s CAFR can be
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

obtained by submitting a written request to the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller, 500 West
Temple Street, Room 525, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2766.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Risk Disclosure - an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 3, certain required disclosures regarding investment policies and practices with respect
to the risk associated with their concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk are discussed in the following paragraphs:

(a) Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification or having too much
invested in a few individual shares. SAFE maintains investment policies that establish thresholds for
holdings of individual securities. SAFE does not have any holdings meeting or exceeding these
threshold levels. As of June 30, 2017, SAFE does not have any investments with more than 5% of the
total investments under one issuer.

(b) Custodial Credit Risk

SAFE has no known custodial credit risk for deposits as financial institutions are required by the
California Government Code to collateralize deposits of public funds by pledging government
securities as collateral. Such collateralization of public funds is accomplished by pooling.

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. SAFE measures interest rate risk on its short-term investments using the effective
duration method. SAFE maintains a policy requiring the average duration of the externally managed
short-term investments not to exceed 150% of the benchmark duration and the average duration
of the internally managed short-term investments not to exceed three years.

(d) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair values
of the cash deposits or investments. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, there was no exposure to foreign
currency risk as all SAFE cash deposits and investments are denominated in U.S. dollar currency.

(3) Significant Commitments

SAFE has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Public Transportation
Services Corporation (PTSC), a blended component unit of LACMTA, for PTSC to provide cost
reimbursable administrative support services to SAFE. The MOU will remain in effect until terminated
by either party with a minimum of sixty (60) days written notice.

SAFE had $603 and $774 of outstanding contractual commitments as of June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively that had not been claimed or disbursed.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2017 2016
Variance Variance
with with
Original Final Final Original Final Final
Budget” Budget” Actual Budget Budget® Budget * Actual Budget
Revenues:
Licenses and fines $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 8271 $ 771 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 8,068 $ 568
Investment income 75 75 141 66 100 100 424 324
Total revenues 7,575 7,575 8,412 837 7,600 7,600 8,492 892
Expenditures:
Administration and other
transportation projects 12,932 12,932 10,492 2,440 10,328 10,328 8,310 2,018
Subsidies to LACMTA 1,000 1,000 1,500 (500) 2,000 2,000 2,287 (287)
Total expenditures 13,932 13,932 11,992 1,940 12,328 12,328 10,597 1,731
Net change in fund balance (6,357) (6,357) (3,580) 2,777 (4,728) (4,728) (2,105) 2,623
Fund balance - beginning of year 22,454 22,454 22,454 — 24,559 24,559 24,559 —
Fund balance - end of year $16,097 $16,097 $18,874 $ 2,777 $ 19,831 $19,831 $ 22,454 $ 2,623

*Budget prepared in accordance with GAAP

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority

Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA'’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA'’s financial statements. The defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2015-
002 to be a material weakness.

(Continued)



A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as
Finding 2015-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Other Matter

This report is being reissued to include Finding 2015-002 related to a federal program being initially
excluded from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. It was originally presented as
Local Share expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, but should have
been presented as federal expenditures.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Response to Findings

LACMTA's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. LACMTA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/M]w-c H—w..mu LL.P

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
December 22, 2015, except for finding 2015-002, which
the date is March 29, 2018




Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors

Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority

Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of LACMTA’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015. LACMTA'’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.




Other Matter

This report is replacing a previously issued report. Management identified that the Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) amount of approximately
$37.5 million was initially included as Local Share expenditures, rather than as federal expenditures, on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. In addition, this report includes this federal
program tested as a major program.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nhoncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in




the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 8 to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, management
identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (Catalog
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 20.223) amount of approximately $37.5 million was initially
included as Local Share expenditures in the Schedule rather than as federal expenditures. Our report is
not modified with respect to this matter.

C/m‘w-c_ H’er-’ﬂm LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sherman Oaks, California

March 3, 2016, except for major program CFDA # 20.223 (TIFIA Program), and our report on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, including Note 4 and Note 8, for which the date is
March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in Note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of LACMTA and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations.

NOTE 3 - SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, LACMTA provided federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

CFDA
Program Title Number Amount
Highway Planning and Construction Program 20.205 $ 319,659
Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants 20.500 13,870,240
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 5,629,753
Job Access and Reverse Commute 20.516 3,050,334
New Freedom Program 20.521 1,369,597

$ 24239583
NOTE 4 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects. For CFDA
20.233, $37,477,492 included in the Schedule represents current year loan proceeds for expenditures that
were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 — FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 6 — MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133 establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in OMB
Circular A-133. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

NOTE 7 — COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program — Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA — LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.

NOTE 8 — RESTATEMENT

During fiscal year 2017, management identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) expenditures were not included on the Schedule for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 as federal funding, but instead were included as Local Share
expenditures. An adjustment was made to reclassify the TIFIA loan program as a federal program and
reduce the $37.5 million of expenditures from Local Share (CFDA #20.933) on the Schedule. When
corrected, the TIFIA program became a major program that required testing in fiscal year 2015.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA 20.205 — Highway Panning and Construction Cluster

Unmodified
X __Yes No
X _Yes None reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X None reported
Unmodified
Yes X No

CFDA 20.223 — Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act Program

CFDA 20.500 / 20.507 / 20.525 — Federal Transit Cluster

CFDA 20.516 / 20.521 — Transit Services Cluster
CFDA 97.075 — Rail and Transit Security Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 3,000,000

X Yes No

(Continued)



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 2 - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

Finding 2015-001 — OPEB Benefits and Plan Provisions (Significant Deficiency)

Condition: Management determined that certain benefit provisions were not included in the actuarial
calculation used to measure the Net OPEB Obligation liability on LACMTA’s statement of net position.
Management discovered that lifetime benefits for ATU employees were not reflected in the previous
valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime benefit provision, the
calculation of the prior Annual Required Contributions were understated and resulted in the Net OPEB
Obligation liability being understated. This benefit plan provision did not affect any of the other LACMTA
OPEB plans.

Criteria: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (Governmental GAAP) -- Under GASB 45 Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for financial
reporting purposes, an actuarial valuation is required at least biennially for OPEB plans. The projection of
benefits should include all benefits covered by the current substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) at the time of each valuation and should take into consideration the pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point, as well as certain legal
or contractual caps on benefits to be provided.

Effect: An adjustment was made to recognize the lifetime benefits for ATU employees that were not
reflected in the previous valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime
benefit provision, the calculation of the prior Annual Required Contribution amounts were understated and
resulted in the Net OPEB Obligation liability being understated. A prior period adjustment of $215,000,000
was made to decrease the business-type activities’ beginning net position and increase the net OPEB
obligation by $215,000,000. The impact on change in net position for the year ended June 30, 2014 was a
reduction of $35,000,000.

Cause: As part of a transition from one actuarial firm to a new actuarial firm, management and the actuary
reviewed benefit plan provisions and identified the ATU lifetime benefit that was not included, although the
benefit had been in place for several years.

Recommendation: We recommend that LACMTA management perform a review of all OPEB plan
provisions and benefits any time a change in the plan is made.

Management Response: LACMTA management performed a detailed review of OPEB plan provisions as
part of an actuarial valuation specialist transition during 2015 to determine the existence, completeness,
and values of benefits provided. Ongoing, management will perform an annual review of plan and benefit
changes for each OPEB plan and update the actuary on changes to the plan to evaluate their impact on
benefits expense and valuation estimates.

(Continued)

10.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

Finding 2015-002 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not included as federal expenditures and instead was presented in the Local Share column of
the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards (SEFA).

Criteria: OMB Circular A-133 requires that proper internal controls are in place over the SEFA to ensure
that all federal grant expenditures and loan draws during the current fiscal year are included as federal
expenditures.

Effect: TIFIA Program expenditures of $37,477,492 were excluded from the federal column of the original
fiscal year 2015 SEFA prepared by management and instead were included in the Local Share column. As
a result of this presentation on the Schedule, the TIFIA Program was not identified and tested as a major
program during the original fiscal year 2015 audit, thus requiring a reissuance of the Single Audit Report.

Cause: The TIFIA Program had not previously had any loan draws or activity, and unlike the other federal
programs that LACMTA receives funds from which are cost reimbursement grant programs, this is a loan
program. Additionally, it appears that there was not clear communication of the OMB Circular A-133
requirements in the loan agreement, nor was there any disclosure of the CFDA number in the loan
agreement. At the time, management made the determination that the funds were Local since the
repayment of the TIFIA loans will come from local funding.

Recommendation: We recommend that management review all loan agreements and confirm, as
applicable, with the funding source the nature of funding and audit compliance requirements. As of the
March 28, 2018 reissuance report date, this matter is considered resolved.

Management's Response: As of this reissuance report date, management has reviewed loan agreements
and affirmed the nature of the funding and audit compliance requirements. Management believe the matter
is resolved.

SECTION 3 - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION 510(A):

None

(Continued)

1.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 4 - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2014-001 — Davis-Bacon Act — Submission of Certified Payrolls (Significant Deficiency)

Federal Program Information: U.S. Department of Transportation — Federal Transit Cluster and National
Infrastructure Investments (CFDA 20.500 and 20.933)

Condition: Management of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) is
required to obtain, on a weekly basis, certified payrolls and statements of compliance from each contractor
for each week in which contracted work is performed under the Davis-Bacon Act. For all major programs
cited below, we noted that management did not have adequate controls in place to ensure that certified
payrolls and compliance statements are received on a weekly basis as required by the Davis-Bacon Act
(29 CFR Sections 5.5 and 5.6).

In our sample of 40 certified payrolls and compliance statements for the Federal Transit Cluster, we noted
all of our samples were not received on a weekly basis. We noted that 27 of the exceptions were received
between 2 and 243 days past the due date. For 13 of the samples, we noted that received date stamp on
the documentation for the respective samples were either illegible or not present on the weekly certified
payroll reports. Although the certified payrolls were not received weekly, the LACMTA ultimately received
all of the required certified payrolls for the samples tested.

In our sample of 40 certified payrolls and compliance statements for the National Infrastructure Investments
program, we noted 35 of our samples were not received on a weekly basis. We noted that these exceptions
were received between 1 and 157 days past the due date. Although the certified payrolls were not received
weekly, the LACMTA ultimately received all of the required certified payrolls for the samples tested.

Status: Resolved. For the Federal Transit Cluster, we selected a sample of 60 certified payrolls from fiscal
year 2015 and did not identify any testing exceptions. The National Infrastructure Investments grant did
not have any federal expenditures in fiscal year 2015, therefore no testing or follow-up was completed.

Finding 2014-002 — Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment (Significant Deficiency)
Federal Program Information: U.S. Department of Transportation — Federal Transit Cluster, National

Infrastructure Investments, Rail and Transit Service Security Grant Program (CFDA 20.500, 20.933, and
97.075)

Condition: Management is required to document the significant history of procurements, including the
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and
the basis of contract type. Management is also required to perform verification for all covered transactions
by checking the Excluded Party List System (EPLS) to ensure covered transactions are not awarded to
suspended or debarred parties. For all major programs cited below, we noted that management did not
have adequate controls in place to ensure compliance with procurement requirements.

Federal Capital Improvement Grants

In our sample of 40 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 10 contract files did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the System for Award Management (SAM) that the
respective vendors were not listed on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

(Continued)
12.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

There were also 6 contracts which were missing the following information:

e 2 contract files were missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of
full and open competition. These contract files were also missing the required and Buy America
certification.

e 1 contract file was missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of full
and open competition and of the cost or price analysis.

e 2 contract files were missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of
full and open competition.

e 1 contract file could not be located.

The federal share of expenditures associated with the 6 contracts and purchase orders that are not in
compliance with the procurement requirements amounted to $172,073 of the $384,087,792 of total federal
program expenditures for the Federal Transit Cluster.

National Infrastructure Investments

In our sample of 3 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 1 contract file did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the System for Award Management (SAM) that the
respective vendors were not listed on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

Rail and Transit Security Grant Program
In our sample of 4 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 2 contract files did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the SAM that the respective vendors were not listed
on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

Status: Resolved. For the Federal Transit Cluster, we selected a sample of 20 contracts and purchase
orders from fiscal year 2015 and did not identify any testing exceptions with any of the procurement
requirements and all 20 contract files were available and included supporting documentation. The National
Infrastructure Investments grant did not have any federal expenditures in fiscal year 2015, therefore no
testing or follow-up was completed. For the Rail and Transit Security Grant Program, we selected a sample
of 6 contracts and purchase orders and did not identify any testing exceptions related to suspension or
debarment.

13.
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Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA'’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2016. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA's financial statements. The financial statements of
the defined benefit pension plan of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Retirement Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2016-001 that we consider to be a
material weakness.




Other Matter

This report is being reissued to include Finding 2016-001 related to a federal program being initially
excluded from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. It was originally presented as
Local Share expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, but should have
been presented as federal expenditures.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA'’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Response to Finding

LACMTA's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. LACMTA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe Hrawenn LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
December 16, 2016, except for finding 2016-01, which
the date is March 29, 2018.




Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of LACMTA’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.
LACMTA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2016.




Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2016, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 7 to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, management
identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (Catalog
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 20.223) amount of approximately $467.8 million was initially
included as Local Share expenditures in the Schedule rather than as federal expenditures. Our report is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Cacive: Bransofi. LEP
Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California

December 16, 2016, except for our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
including note 3 and note 7, for which the date is March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years. LACMTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance. For CFDA 20.233, $312,220,783 in the Schedule represents current year loan
proceeds for expenditures that were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 - MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in
Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 6 — COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program - Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA - LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.

NOTE 7 - RESTATEMENT

During fiscal year 2017, management identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) expenditures were not included on the Schedule for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 as federal funding, but instead were included as Local Share
expenditures. An adjustment was made to add the TIFIA loan program as a federal program line and
reclassify the $467.8 million of expenditures from Local Share (CFDA #20.500 Grant Number CA-03-0825
and CFDA #20.507 Grant Number CA-95-X256) to Federal on the Schedule.

10.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

Unmodified
X __Yes No
Yes X None reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X None reported
Unmodified
Yes X No

CFDA 20.500/20.507 / 20.525 / 20.526 — Federal Transit Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 4,297,594

Yes X No

1.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

SECTION 2 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding 2016-001 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not classified as federal expenditures, but instead was presented in the Local Share column
of the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards (SEFA).

Criteria: Uniform Guidance requires that proper internal controls are in place over the SEFA to ensure that
all federal grant expenditures and loan draws during the current fiscal year are included as federal
expenditures.

Effect: TIFIA Program expenditures of $467,796,377 were excluded from the federal column of the original
fiscal year 2016 SEFA prepared by management and instead were included in the Local Share column.
Therefore, the federal expenditures were understated.

Cause: The TIFIA Program had not previously had any loan draws or activity, and unlike the other federal
programs that LACMTA receives funds from which are cost reimbursement grant programs, this is a loan
program. Additionally, it appears that there was not clear communication of the Uniform Guidance
requirements in the loan agreement, nor was there any disclosure of the CFDA number in the loan
agreement. At the time, management made the determination that the funds were Local since the
repayment of the TIFIA loans will come from local funding.

Recommendation:

We recommend that management review all loan agreements and confirm, as applicable, with the funding
source the nature of funding and audit compliance requirements. As of the March 28, 2018 reissuance
report date, this matter is considered resolved.

Management's Response : As of this reissuance report date, management has reviewed loan agreements
and affirmed the nature of the funding and audit compliance requirements. Management believes the
matter is resolved.

SECTION 3 - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.

12.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 — OPEB Benefits and Plan Provisions (Significant Deficiency)

Condition: Management determined that certain benefit provisions were not included in the actuarial
calculation used to measure the Net OPEB Obligation liability on LACMTA’s statement of net position.
Management discovered that lifetime benefits for ATU employees were not reflected in the previous
valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime benefit provision, the
calculation of the prior Annual Required Contributions were understated and resulted in the Net OPEB
Obligation liability being understated. This benefit plan provision did not affect any of the other LACMTA
OPEB plans.

Status: Resolved

Finding 2015-002 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material Weakness)
Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not identified by management as federal expenditures in the fiscal year 2015 SEFA and instead
was included in the Local Share column.

Status: As of March 29, 2018 reporting date, this matter is considered resolved.

13.



Los Angeles County
M etrO Metropolitan Transportation

Authority
One Gateway Plaza
@ 3rd Floor Board Room
Los Angeles, CA
Metro Board Report
File #: 2017-0702, File Type: Program Agenda Number: 11.

FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: MAJOR CONSTRUCTION UMBRELLA INSURANCE
PROGRAM

ACTION: PURCHASE UMBRELLA INSURANCE

RECOMMENDATION

AUTHORIZE the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate and purchase additional construction project
umbrella liability insurance policies (also known as a super excess general liability insurance
program) for construction of the Metro Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project (the Project)
with up to $300 million in additional limits at a cost not to exceed $4.9 million for the period effective
June 6, 2017 to June 6, 2027 (and products/completed operations coverage to June 6, 2037).

ISSUE
Metro is concerned about the financial implications of an unanticipated loss resulting in major
damage to adjacent properties and/or loss of life/injury on our major transit construction projects.

Such risk can be mitigated reasonably through the purchase of additional insurance.

BACKGROUND

Existing Liability Insurance Coverage for the Metro Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project

Dedicated limits of insurance coverage for the Metro Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2
Project are provided by the Design Build (DB) contractor, Tutor Perini/O&G, A Joint Venture. The
liability insurance on the Project, which covers the negligent injury or death and/or property damage
to others, is $350 million. This coverage also includes products and completed operations for ten
years following the revenue service date and will respond to latent defects which cause injury or
death, or real property damage to other people. The coverage limits take into account aspects such
as concentration of property values near the Project, population density, tunneling, project duration,
and other factors. The contract award value of the Project was $1,376,500,000.

Risk Exposure Above Existing Coverage

Despite using liability insurance limits toward the high end of industry practice in our major
construction project contracts, these limits would be insufficient to respond to an extremely unlikely
and unanticipated loss resulting in widespread property damage or loss of life.

Metro Page 1 of 3 Printed on 4/2/2022
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Metro purchased additional construction project umbrella liability insurance policies for construction
of the Metro Westside Purple Line Extension Section 1, Gold Line Foothill Extension Phase 2A,
Crenshaw/LAX, Expo Il Transit Corridor and Regional Connector Projects in October 2014 as
authorized by the Board. The policies are effective for the period October 1, 2014 to January 3, 2023
(with products and completed operations coverage to January 3, 2033) and provide additional liability
insurance limits up to $550 million over the current contractor owned insurance programs. Purchase
of this policy will provide a consistent approach to mitigating our risk exposure and provide the same
amount of liability limit available on the projects listed above.

DISCUSSION

Proposed Additional Liability Insurance Coverage for the Metro Westside Purple Line Extension
Section 2 Project

Metro’s construction insurance broker, Aon Risk Services, approached each of the carriers in Metro’s
current super umbrella program to determine whether they were willing to enroll the Metro Westside
Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project into their current policies. However, due to a number of
reasons such as market appetite and the fact that reinsurance treaties with all carriers in the first
layer allow policy terms to run no longer than eight years, our broker approached the market with a
new policy to take the project term out to the required 12 years to include the timeframe for the
Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project with a linked limits endorsement to the prior policy.
This approach was accepted by the carriers in the first layer of coverage in the amount of $50 million.
A $250 million limit is provided by the secondary layer carrier for a total coverage, including the DB
provided coverage, of $750 million (the same as the existing super umbrella program). This action
brings continuity of coverage for all major Metro construction projects under one program.

Attachment A identifies the insurance carriers and pricing for the proposed program.

DETERMINATION OF SAFETY IMPACT

Approval of this recommendation will not impact the safety of Metro's patrons or employees.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The funding for this action is included in the FY18 budget, under Project 865522 (Westside Purple
Line Extension Section 2), Fund 6012, Cost Center 8510 (Construction Project Management),
Account Number 50602 (Insurance Premium for General Liability) and Task Number 4.10.01.03
(General Liability - Non FFGA).

Impact to Budget

The sources of funds for the recommended action are from Measure R 35% and Local Funds. The
approved FY18 budget is designated for the Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2 Project and
does not have an impact to operations funding sources.
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ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Aon Risk Services explored the possibility of a single insurer, Berkshire Hathaway, to provide the full
coverage required for the Project. Their estimated premium for doing so was not a viable option.

There are no other viable options as we have exhausted the marketplace to develop the limits
recommended in this super excess liability program. There are no more available limits in the
insurance industry.

Metro could self-insure this exposure and rely on its indemnities with the DB contractor, however, this
approach would leave Metro with an unknown and unknowable risk of an unanticipated loss.

NEXT STEPS

Upon Board approval of this action, we will advise Metro’s broker, Aon Risk Services, to proceed with
placement of the excess liability insurance program outlined herein effective June 6, 2017.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Recommended Program Pricing and Carriers

Prepared by: Tim Rosevear, Manager, Financing Manager, (213) 922-6354

Reviewed by: Greg Kildare, Chief Risk, Safety and Asset Management Officer, (213) 922-4971

g

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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RECOMMENDED PROGRAM PRICING AND CARRIERS

ATTACHMENT A

Carrier Limits Percentage Premium Total Taxes & Fees TOTAL
Primary
Chubb $11,607,143 23.2% $626,786 $43,875 $670,661
AWAC $6,250,000 12.5% $337,500 $23,625 $361,125
Endurance $4,464,286 8.9% $241,071 $7,714 $248,786
Swiss RE $4,464,286 8.9% $241,071 $7,714 $248,786
Argo $4,464,286 8.9% $241,071 $16,875 $257,946
XL $4,464,286 8.9% $241,071 $7,232 $248,304
Markel $3,571,429 7.1% $192,857 $5,786 $198,643
Catlin $3,125,000 6.3% $168,750 $5,400 $174,150
Liberty $2,678,571 5.4% $144,643 $4,629 $149,271
Apollo $2,678,571 5.4% $144,643 $4,629 $149,271
Starstone $2,232,142 4.5% $120,536 $3,857 $124,393
$50,000,000 100.0% $2,700,000 $131,336 $2,831,336
Secondary
Berkshire $250,000000 |  100.0% | $1,919,210 | $61,415 | $1,980,625 |
GRAND TOTAL | $300,000,000 | | $4,619,210 | $192,750 | $4,811,960 |
Contingency for carrier, premium, tax or fee adjustments $88,040
Bermuda Markets Not to Exceed Amou nt| $4,900,000 |

Domestic Markets
London Markets



Los Angeles County
MetrO Metropolitan Transportation
Authority
One Gateway Plaza
@ 3rd Floor Board Room
B B r R Los Angeles, CA
Metro oard Report
File #: 2018-0169, File Type: Informational Report Agenda Number: 12.

FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: MANAGEMENT AUDIT SERVICES FY 2018 THIRD
QUARTER REPORT
ACTION: RECEIVE AND FILE

RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE AND FILE the third quarter report of Management Audit Services (Management Audit) for
the period ending March 31, 2018.

ISSUE

At its January 2005 meeting, the Board designated the Executive Management and Audit Committee
(EMAC) as their audit committee. The EMAC requested a quarterly report from Management Audit
on its audit activities. In July 2011, the audit responsibilities were transferred to the Finance, Budget
and Audit Committee. This report fulfills the requirement for the third quarter of FY 2018.

DISCUSSION

Management Audit provides audit support to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and his executive
management team. The audits we perform are categorized as either internal or external. Internal
audits evaluate the processes and controls within the agency. External audits analyze contractors,
cities or non-profit organizations that we conduct business with or receive Metro funds.

There are four groups in Management Audit: Performance Audit, Contract Pre-Award Audit, Incurred
Cost Audit and Audit Support and Research Services. Performance Audit is primarily responsible for
all audits for Operations, Finance and Administration, Planning and Development, Program
Management, Information Technology, Communications, Risk, Safety and Asset Management and
Executive Office. Contract Pre-Award and Incurred Cost Audit are responsible for external audits in
Planning and Development, Program Management and Vendor/Contract Management. All of these
units provide assurance to the public that internal processes are efficiently, economically, effectively,
ethically, and equitably performed by conducting audits of program effectiveness and results,
economy and efficiency, internal controls, and compliance. Audit Support and Research Services is
responsible for administration, financial management, budget coordination, and audit follow-up and
resolution tracking.
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The summary of Management Audit activity for the quarter ending March 31, 2018 is as follows:
Internal Audits: Two internal audits were issued and 14 were in process.

External Audits: One contract pre-award audit with a total value of $17.5 million was completed and
5 incurred cost audits with a total value of $19 million were completed. 54 incurred cost audits were
in process.

Other Audits: 126 Consolidated Audits were issued by external auditors.

Audit Follow-up and Resolution: 14 recommendations were closed during the third quarter. At the
end of the quarter, there were 28 open audit recommendations. In addition, two recommendations
for the OIG were closed. Details of all open, extended, and closed recommendations can be found in
the Third Quarter Board Box titled “Status of Audit Recommendations”.

Management Audit’'s FY 2018 third quarter report is included as Attachment A.

NEXT STEPS

Management Audit will provide the FY 2018 Fourth Quarter report of audit activity to the Board at the
September 2018 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee meeting.

ATTACHMENT

Attachment A - Management Audit Services Quarter Report
Prepared by: Monica Del Toro, Audit Support Manager (213) 922-7494

Reviewed by: Diana Estrada, Chief Auditor (213) 922-2161

g

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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Attachment A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Summary of Audit Activity
During the third quarter of FY 2018, 134 projects were completed. These include:
Internal Audits

o Performance Audit of the Cash Counting Process;
o Follow-Up Performance Audit of 511 Traveler Information System

Pre-Award Audits
e Independent Auditor’'s Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Cost Proposal for the
Metro Green Line Track Circuits & Train on Wayside Communication Upgrade;

Incurred Cost Audits

o Independent Auditor’'s Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures of Ramos Consulting
Services, Inc.’s interim incurred cost for the years 2014 and 2015 for Regional
Connector Transit Corridor Project;

« Independent Auditor's Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Close-out Review of
City of Inglewood’s Florence Avenue Regional Transportation Corridor Improvement
Project;

e Independent Auditor’'s Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Close-out Review of
City of Norwalk’s Firestone Boulevard Widening over San Gabriel River Project;

e Independent Auditor’'s Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Close-out Review of
City of Malibu’s PCH Roadway and Bike Route Improvements from Busch Drive to
W.C.L. Project;

e Independent Auditor's Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Close-out Review of
City of Pasadena’s Zero Emission Vehicle Charging Stations Project;

Other Audits
e 126 other (Consolidated Audits) audits issued by external CPA firms.

The completed external audits are discussed on page 3. Discussions of the internal audits

begin on page 4. Discussions of Other audits issued by external CPA firms begin on page
5.

Management Audit Services FY 2018 Third Quarter Report 1




Attachment A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Sixty-eight projects were in process as of March 31, 2018; these included 14 internal audits
and 54 incurred cost audits.

The following chart identifies the functional areas where Management Audit focused audit
staff time and efforts during third quarter FY 2018:

Program Risk, Safety & Asset  Vendor/Contract
Management Mgmt Management
30% 1% 8%

Agencywide
10%

Congestion
Reduction

/z%

........ G B e LR I *

Finance and Budget
13%

Human Capital &
Development

Planning & Information 2%
Development Metro OperationsTechnology
28% 1% 2%

Audit follow-up:
e 14 recommendations were closed during the third quarter. At the end of the quarter
there were 28 open audit recommendations.
e |n addition, we closed two OIG recommendations. At the end of the quarter there
were 44* open audit recommendations.

*This total does not include recommendations included in the Audit of Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2- Modification No. 52,
Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail Operational Safety, and Review of Metro Rail Services Disruptions, as the management
response and/or estimated completion dates are still pending. However, Operations has hired consultants to assist in addressing the
most critical elements of the Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail Operational Safety.

Management Audit Services FY 2018 Third Quarter Report 2




Attachment A

EXTERNAL AUDITS

Contract Pre-Award Audit

Contract Pre-Award Audit provides support to the Vendor/Contract Management
Department for a wide range of large-dollar procurements and projects. This support is
provided throughout the procurement cycle in the form of pre-award, interim, change
order, and closeout audits, as well as assistance with contract negotiations.

During third quarter FY 2018, one audit was completed, reviewing a net value of $17.5
million. Auditors questioned $374 thousand or 2% of the proposed costs. The audit
supported procurements in the following area:

» Metro Green Line Track and Wayside Communications Upgrades

Details on Contract Pre-Award Audits completed during third quarter FY 2018 are in
Appendix A.

Incurred Cost Audit

Incurred Cost Audit conducts audits for Planning and Development’s Call-for-Projects
program, Program Management’s highway projects, federally funded transportation
programs, and various other transportation related projects, including Caltrans projects.
The purpose of the audits is to ensure that funds are spent in accordance with the terms
of the grants/contracts and federal cost principles.

Incurred Cost Audit completed five audits during third quarter FY 2018. We reviewed
$19 million of funds and identified $924 thousand or 5% of unused funds that may be
reprogrammed. Fifty-four incurred cost audits were in process as of March 31, 2018.

Details on Incurred Cost Audits completed during third quarter FY 2018 are in Appendix
B.

Management Audit Services FY 2018 Third Quarter Report 3




Attachment A

INTERNAL AUDITS

For the third quarter of FY 2018, two internal audits were completed. Fourteen internal
audits were in process as of March 31, 2018. The internal audits in process are listed in
Appendix C.

The following internal audits were issued in the third quarter FY 2018. The completed
reports are listed in order of the magnitude of risks that their findings represent to the
agency.

Performance Audit of the Cash Counting Process

The audit objective was to evaluate the adequacy of internal controls over the cash
counting process and verify whether the corrective actions from prior audit of Cash
Collection and Counting Process (09-REV-F01) were implemented.

We found that the internal controls were adequate and that recommendations from prior
audit were implemented. In addition, we identified two areas for process improvement
opportunities.

Follow-Up Performance Audit of 511 Traveler Information System

The audit objective was to verify the implementation of agreed upon corrective actions from
the prior audit of the 511 Traveler Information System, Report No. 12-PLN-KO01 issued on
June 22, 2012. There were four findings in the previous MAS Report No. 12-PLN-K01
pertaining to the following: 1) Underutilization of the 511 System, 2) Project Management
Oversight, 3) Inadequate Information Technology General Controls, and 4) Customer
Feedback.

We found that all recommendations from the prior audit report were implemented. The
corrective actions implemented by management improved the monitoring of the utilization
of the 511 System, project management of the contract terms, monitoring of information
technology general controls, and the quality of customer feedback. There are no findings
identified in this audit.
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OTHER AUDITS

126 Other (Consolidated Audit — Issued various dates) audits completed during Third

Quarter FY18 by external CPA firms:

These financial and compliance audits are needed to ensure that the recipients of subsidies
included in the Consolidated Audit are adhering to the statutes of each applicable funding
source and that operations data used to allocate funds is fair and in accordance with
Federal Transportation Administration guidelines. For efficiency and effectiveness, we
contracted with two firms (Simpson & Simpson and Vasquez & Company, LLP) to conduct
the financial and compliance audits of the following programs for the year ended June 30,

2017:

103 reports - Proposition A Local Return Fund, Proposition A Discretionary Incentive
Grants, Proposition C Local Return Fund, Measure R Local Return Fund, the
Transportation Development Act Article 3 and Article 8 Funds, and EZ Transit Pass
Programs for 88 cities, County of Los Angeles, Antelope Valley Transit Authority and
Pomona Valley Transportation Authority

6 reports - Transit System Funds and Measure R 20% Fund for Cities of Commerce,
Redondo Beach and Torrance

5 reports - Fare Subsidies Programs with non-profit entities.

1 report - Access Services

11 reports - LADOT Operating Data (Proposition A Incentive Programs)

The respective auditors will follow up on the findings identified in these audits in the
following years’ audits.

Measure R Independent Taxpayers Oversight Committee Workshop:

The voter approved Measure R Ordinance mandates that an annual audit be
conducted after the end of the fiscal year to determine compliance with the
provisions of the Ordinance related to the net revenues allocated to the Local Return
Subfund during the fiscal year. As required by law, Simpson & Simpson and
Vasquez presented their audit report regarding Measure R sales tax revenues used
by the 87 cities (excluding the City of Vernon which opted out to receive Measure R
funds) as well as the County of Los Angeles to the Measure R Oversight Committee
on March 13, 2018.
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AUDIT SUPPORT SERVICES

Audit Follow-Up and Resolution

During the third quarter, 14 recommendations were completed and closed. At the end of
the quarter there were 28 outstanding audit recommendations. The table below
summarizes the third quarter activity.

Summary of MAS and External Audit Recommendations
As of March 31, 2018

Not Yet Total
Executive Area Closed Late Extended | Due/Under
. Open

Review
|Program Management
Vendor Contract Management
|Finance and Budget
|Information Technology 1 1 1
|[Metro Operations 7 8 8
|Planning and Development 2 2 2
|Communications 2 5 5
Systems Security & Law
|Enforcement
|[Human Capital & Development 2 12 12
Totals 14 0 16 12 28

In addition to the above MAS and external audit recommendations, we closed two
recommendations for the Office of the Inspector General (OIG). At the end of the quarter
there were 44* outstanding OIG audit recommendations.

*This total does not include recommendations included in the Audit of Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2- Modification No. 52,
Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail Operational Safety, and Review of Metro Rail Services Disruptions, as the management
response and/or estimated completion dates are still pending. However, Operations has hired consultants to assist in addressing the
most critical elements of the Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail Operational Safety.
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Appendix A
Contract Pre-Award Audit FY 2018 - Audits Completed During Third Quarter
. . Date
No. Area Audit Number & Type Contractor Frequency Requirement Completed
1 |Operations 18-OPS-AQ2 - Altestation Agreed- |, 40 75 USA, Inc. 1st Time VCM Request 2/2018
upon Procedures
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Appendix B
Incurred Cost Audit FY 2018 - Audits Completed During Third Quarter
. . Date
No. Area Audit Number & Type Contractor Frequency Requirement Completed
Planning & Per Project Manager's
1 Develo gment 17-PLN-A29 - Closeout City of Inglewood Once request and FA. 1/2018
P POOF3130 terms
5 Program 17-CON-A39 - Attestation Ramos Consulting Services, Inc. 2nd Time VCM Policy 3/2018
Management Agreed-upon Procedures
. Per Project Manager's
Planning & .
3 Develooment 17-PLN-A30 - Closeout City of Norwalk Once request and 3/2018
P MOU.POOF1219 terms
Program Per Project Manager's
4 Mar?a ement 18-HWY-AO03 - Closeout City of Malibu Once request and 3/2018
g MOU.MR311.30 terms
. Per Project Manager's
Planning & .
5 Development 18-PLN-A14 - Closeout City of Pasadena Once request and 3/2018
P MOU.POOF3709 terms
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Appendix C

Internal Audit FY 2018 - In Process as of March 31, 2018

Estimated Date of

No Area Audit Number & Title Description Frequency Requirement Completion
Information & Performance Audit of Evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the Information First Time Per FY17 Audit 4/2018
Technology Information Technology Technology Services (ITS) Department’s Project Management Plan
Services Project Management Process. A sample from all information technology systems acquired,

upgraded, developed and/or implemented during the period from July
1 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016 will be selected to assess the
efficiency and effectiveness of the Project Management Process,
including the projects’ success from the end user perspective.
Metro Operations |17-OPS-P07 - Performance |Determine the effectiveness of the track allocation process. First Time Per FY16 Audit 4/2018
2 Audit of Track Allocation Plan
Program 16-CON-P04 - Performance |Evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the agency’s Construction 2nd Time; Last | Per FY16 Audit 5/2018
Management Audit of Construction Quality |Quality Assurance Program over minor construction projects (less than| Audit 3 years ago Plan
Assurance $100 million) and to follow-up on the implementation of
3 recommendations from the prior Performance Audit of Construction
Quality Assurance, No. 11-CON-K02.
Finance & Budget|17-OMB-P02 - Performance |Evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls over Farebox Revenue First Time Per FY17 Audit 5/2018
4 Audit of Farebox Revenue Process. Plan
Process
Vendor / Contract |16-VCM- P01 - Performance . . 3rd _Tlme, Last | PerFY16 Audit 5/2018
5 . Evaluate compliance to P-card purchase requirements. audits 4 and 8 Plan
Management Audit of P-Card
years ago
Vendor / Contract |17-VCM-PO02 - Performance |To determine the extent of Vendor/Contract Management’'s First Time Per FY17 Audit 6/2018
Management Audit of Change Order compliance with policies and procedures. Plan
Process To determine Vendor/Contract Management’'s adequacy of the
6 justification documentation for approving contract modifications.
To determine the extent of key information utilization for contract
modifications.
Identify best practices and present to Vendor/Contract Management
for consideration.
Vendor / Contract [17-VCM-P04 - Performance |To determine Vendor/Contract Management's adequacy of the First Time Per FY17 Audit 6/2018
Management Audit of Pre-Award Process |justification documentation for the vendor contract selection method Plan
7 (e.g. best value, lowest bid).
To determine the extent of key information utilization to select vendors
for contract awards.
Metro Operations |16-OPS-P03 - Performance |Determine the efficiency and effectiveness of Operations’ Accident First Time Per FY16 Audit 6/2018
8 Audit of Accident Prevention |Prevention Practices. Plan

Program
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Appendix C

Internal Audit FY 2018 - In Process as of March 31, 2018

Estimated Date of

No Area Audit Number & Title Description Frequency Requirement Completion
Agency-Wide 17-AGW-POL1 - Performance [Evaluate efficiency and effectiveness of the use of consultants. Phase First Time Per FY17 Audit 6/2018
Audit of Consultant Hours 1 — This audit will report on the agency-wide use of consultants such Plan
as the number of consultants by business unit, nature of work
9 conducted by the consultants, consultant costs and other statistical
information during the review period (FY14, FY15 and FY16).
17-OMB-P04 - Performance |[To evaluate the adequacy of the Position Reconciliation Process 2nd Time; Last | Per FY17 Audit 6/2018
10 Employee & Audit of Position between the cost centers, Human Resources and Office of Audit 6 years ago Plan
Labor Relations / |Reconciliation Process Management and Budget.
Finance & Budget
18-RSK-PO01 - Performance [Evaluate the adequacy of the Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 2nd Time; Last | Per FY18 Audit 6/2018
Risk Audit of Business Continuity |project, and report on progress to date on the COOP project as of Audit 8 years ago Plan
11
Management Plan March 31, 2018.
Vendor / Contract [18-VCM-PO01 - Annual Audit . . qu Time; Last | Per FY18 Audit 5/2018
12 . . Evaluate Business Interruption Fund Program Audit a years ago Plan
Management of Business Interuption Fund
Vendor / Contract |18-VCM-P02 - Performance |Evaluate the process of monitoring SBE/DBE goals achievement and 1st Time Per FY18 Audit 6/2018
13 Management Audit of the Tracking of SBE |[reliability of the information captured and reported from this process by Plan
and DBE Goals Diversity and Economic Opportunity Department.
ITS and 18-ITS-PO1 - Performance Evaluate whether changes from the SMART Collective Bargaining First Time Per FY18 Audit 6/2018
Operations Audit of HASTUS - Agreement effective July 1, 2017 were effectively implemented in the Plan
14 Confirmation of Collective HASTUS System, and to assess the adequacy of the implementation

Bargaining Agreement
Changes

plans for the pending system changes.
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Appendix D
Open Audit Recommendations
Original
. . Rec. . . Extended
No. Area Audit Number & Title Recommendation Completion .
No. Completion Date
Date
We recommend the Chief Operations Officer: Consider multi-division operator run
1 cutting to optimize workforce distribution amongst divisions.
Update: Operations will be using the CrewOpt module for the June 2018
Operations 11-OPS-006 - HASTUS 11 |shakeup. 6/30/2016 6/30/2018
We recommend the Chief Operations Officer: Adopt integrated scheduling to improve
2 the efficiency of run cuts.
Update: Operations will be using the CrewOpt module for the June 2018
Operations 11-OPS-006 - HASTUS 12 |shakeup. 6/30/2016 6/30/2018
3 We recommend the Communications Department to report the program performance
16-COM-PO01 - Special Fares periodically to the appropriate level of management to support decision making.
Communications Programs 20 |Update: MOU is being reviewed by internal stakeholders for suggestions. 3/31/2017 7/31/2018
We recommend the Communications Department to renew the agreement with the
4 16-COM-PO0L1 - Special Fares Court to confirm mutual agreement.
Communications Programs 21 |Update: MOU is being reviewed by internal stakeholders for suggestions. 3/31/2017 7/31/2018
5 We recommend the Communications Department to revisit the program purpose and
16-COM-PO01 - Special Fares guidelines/requirements to assess the current J-TAP Program performance.
Communications Programs 22 |Update: MOU is being reviewed by internal stakeholders for suggestions. 3/31/2017 7/31/2018
We recommend the Communications Department obtain a written agreement with
6 DCFS to confirm the mutual agreement and to retain the legal rights to enforce DCFS
16-COM-PO01 - Special Fares to meet the Program guidelines and requirements.
Communications Programs 23 |Update: MOU is being reviewed by internal stakeholders for suggestions. 3/31/2017 7/31/2018
We recommend the Communications Department to assess the program performance
! 16-COM-PO01 - Special Fares periodically, and report to the appropriate level of management.
Communications Programs 25 |Update: MOU is being reviewed by internal stakeholders for suggestions. 3/31/2017 7/31/2018
We recommend that Real Estate Management complete the required inspections and
document inspection records on file.
8 Update: Real Estate has provided Master schedule to perform required
Planning & 14-EDD-PO01 - Real Estate inspection. Management Audit is reviewing supporting documents for some of
Development Property 11 |the inspections completed. 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Any findings that have not been corrected 90 days after the due date are reported as late.
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Appendix D

Open Audit Recommendations

No.

Area

Audit Number & Title

Rec.

No.

Recommendation

Original
Completion
Date

Extended
Completion Date

Planning &
Development

14-EDD-PO1 - Real Estate
Property

12

We recommend that Real Estate complete the write off process for delinquent
accounts that are deemed uncollectable in accordance with the policy established for
writing off uncollectable amounts.

Update: Management Audit is currently reviewing supporting documentation
provided by Real Estate Management to verify that appropriate corrective action
was taken.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

10

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

We recommend the Chief Operations Officer require Track management to develop
an inventory of linear assets and their components that can be the basis of a PMP to
accurately forecast maintenance requirements and component replacements.
Update: Currently, a software system called OpTram is in the initial stages of
being developed that will have an inventory of linear assets, including Wayside
track assets. This will be a short term solution for the inventory of assets as the
long term plan is to replace the M3 system which should include a requirement
for linear assets inventory.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

11

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

We recommend that while the long-term recommendation is being evaluated, that the
Chief Operations Officer require Track management to revise inspection forms/reports
to include: applicable checklists with inspection criteria for the different types of
inspections; condition description, and ranking description of conditions with
estimated completion for corrective actions.

Update: The M3 mobile app for the Daily Inspection form is now being tested by
Track Inspectors. Verification of the inspections criteria for the different types
of inspections is expected to be completed by June 30, 2018.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

12

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

We recommend that while the long-term recommendation is being evaluated, that the
Chief Operations Officer require Track management to log all conditions that impact
the track structure in the inspection reports, including water damage in the tunnels.
Update: The M3 mobile app for Daily Inspection form is now being tested by
Track Inspectors. The determination of whether all conditions that impact the
track structure are being documented and will be completed by June 30, 2018.

06/30/207

6/30/2018

Any findings that have not been corrected 90 days after the due date are reported as late.
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Appendix D

Open Audit Recommendations

No.

Area

Audit Number & Title

Rec.

No.

Recommendation

Original
Completion
Date

Extended
Completion Date

13

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

10

We recommend that while the long-term recommendation is being evaluated, that the
Chief Operations Officer require Track management to work with other business units
who are responsible to implement any corrective actions that may impact track
maintenance and/or track condition.

Update: The Director of Wayside Systems informed us that Track Inspectors are
communicating with Wayside Systems Facility Maintenance for any corrective
actions outside of track maintenance responsibility. Additionally, a vendor was
hired to perform repairs and maintenance on Metro concrete guide ways,
bridges and subway tunnels.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

14

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

12

We recommend that the Chief Operations Officer, require Track management to
provide training for track management, supervisors and/or leads that create work
orders in the M3 system.

Update: The M3 mobile app for the Daily Inspection form is now being tested by
Track Inspectors.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

15

Operations

16-OPS-P0O1 - Wayside
Systems - Track Maintenance

13

We recommend that the Chief Operations Officer, require Track management to log
all open maintenance conditions in M3, as they are identified, to produce meaningful
reports.

Update: The M3 mobile app for the Daily Inspection form is now being tested by
Track Inspectors.

6/30/2017

6/30/2018

16

Information
Technology
Services

16-1TS-P02 - Performance
Audit of IT Asset Management

We recommend that the ITS Department Management complete the update of the
Standards Compliance and Asset Management (IT 7) Policy to clarify the roles and
responsibilities of the ITS department and other cost centers in tracking and
managing IT assets. The policy should include the types of IT assets that need to be
maintained in IT asset inventory records. The policy revision should also include the
extent of the periodic physical inventory/reconciliation based on the risk associated
with the type of IT assets and the amount of investment on various types of IT assets.

10/31/2017

6/30/2018

17

Human Capital &
Development

18-CEO-PO01 - Consulting
Engagement for the Travel
Booking Process

la

We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
following but not limited to: appropriate prioritization methodology to prioritize travel
requests.

6/30/2018

18

Human Capital &
Development

18-CEO-PO01 - Consulting
Engagement for the Travel
Booking Process

1b

We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
following but not limited to: Target turnaround time for booking completely filled
Travel Authorization Forms received.

6/30/2018

Any findings that have not been corrected 90 days after the due date are reported as late.
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Appendix D
Open Audit Recommendations
Original
. . Rec. . . Extended
No. Area Audit Number & Title Recommendation Completion :
No. Completion Date
Date
We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
19 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting following but not limited to: requirement to obtain justification which is approved by the
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel department management for late requests (submitted less than 30 days of travel
Development Booking Process 1c |date). 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
20 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel following but not limited to: requirement when to return incomplete travel request
Development Booking Process 1d |forms to the requestors to complete. 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
21 following but not limited to:
18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting requirement to document traveler's management approval and travel change cost
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel records for cost increases in excess of the 20% threshold, resulting from changes
Development Booking Process le |made after the initial booking. 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to develop a written policy and/or
procedure manual for the Travel Program Administrator which addresses the
22 following but not limited to: guideline of acceptable nature and established threshold
18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting for allowable cost differences when accommodating traveler preferences or requests.
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel Specify the required traveler's management approval if any, and whose responsibility
Development Booking Process 1f  |it will be to pay the cost difference in excess of the allowable threshold. 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to continue to collaborate with the
23 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting ITS Department to implement a Travel Information Management System to automate
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel the travel coordination, booking, supporting documentation retention, and expense
Development Booking Process 3 reimbursement processes. 12/31/2018
24 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting We recommend the General Services Management to consider providing various cost
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel center management with a periodic summary report of all travel transactions to assist
Development Booking Process 4 in identifying travel trends, cost saving opportunities and extent of policy exceptions. 4/30/2018

Any findings that have not been corrected 90 days after the due date are reported as late.
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Appendix D
Open Audit Recommendations
Original
. . Rec. . . Extended
No. Area Audit Number & Title Recommendation Completion :
No. Completion Date
Date
We recommend the General Services Management to update the current Travel and
25 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting Business Expense Policy (FIN 14) to require travelers to submit the Travel
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel Authorization Form at least 30 days prior to the travel date. Require justification and
Development Booking Process 5 management approval for travel request submitted less than the 30 days requirement. 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to extend no show penalty
26 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting provision to flights and other travel reservations to enforce the travelers to inform the
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel Travel Office of the cancelled travel. Clarify traveler's responsibility if any, to pay for
Development Booking Process 6 the cost of the missed flights. 6/30/2018
We recommend the General Services Management to create a traveler's checklist of
all required information, documentation, and approvals that should be included to the
27 Travel Authorization Form in order to book travel. Require traveler to sign the
18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting checklist to certify completeness of documentation/information prior to submission to
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel the Travel administrator. Consider returning incomplete Travel Authorizations to the
Development Booking Process 8 travel requestor. 6/30/2018
28 18-CEO-PO1 - Consulting We recommend the General Services Management to consider evaluating staffing
Human Capital & | Engagement for the Travel resource adequacy as a result of the Travel Program Administrator's increased
Development Booking Process 9 responsibilities related to the monthly credit card reconciliations. 6/30/2019

Any findings that have not been corrected 90 days after the due date are reported as late.
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Appendix E
OIG Open Audit Recommendations
Original Extended
No. Area Audit Number & Title | Rec. No. Recommendation Completion | Completion
Date Date
The 109 recommendations included in this report address findings in low bid contracting, project
P 16-AUD-01 - Capital Project delivery method selection process and criteria, contract administration, obtaining necessary approvals
1 M rogram . | Management Best Practices 38 Total  |from cities to avoid delays, etc.
anagemen Study Update: As of March 31, 2018, 71 of 109 recommendations have been completed.
. 18-AUD-02 - Audit of
2 Planning & Procurement of Subscription la
Development . P We recommend that the Chief Planning Officer follow through with plans to contact the Procurement
Services . f L . . -
Department regarding procuring subscription services currently provided by Digital Map Products.
Planning & 18-AUD-02 - Audit of
3 Development Procurement of Subscription 1b We recommend that the Chief Planning Officer counsel the Real Estate staff not to use multiple
Services methods of payment for a single expense.
Vendor and 18-AUD-02 - Audit of We recommend the Chief, Vendor/Contract Management Officer should follow through on plans to
4 Contract Procurement of Subscription 2a provide refresher training to Contract Administrators for not extending purchase orders beyond one
Management Services year (unless there is a multi-year option).
5 V(ce:ndct)r art1d P lS'AUD':)Zf'SAL;’d't c.th. 2b We recommend the Chief, Vendor/Contract Management Officer should follow through on plans to
M ontrac " rocurem(;n or subscription provide refresher training to Contract Administrators for considering multi-year contracts as an option
anagemen ervices for recurring services.
Vendor and 18-AUD-02 - Audit of We recommend the Chief, Vendor/Contract Management Officer should follow through on plans to
6 Contract Procurement of Subscription 2c provide refresher training to Contract Administrators for ensuring procurement files contain required
Management Services documents and are sent to the Procurement File Room for storage when the procurements are
completed.
18-AUD-02 - Audit of
7 |Finance & Budget| Procurement of Subscription 3 We recommend the Executive Officer, Finance/Controller should follow through on plans to update

Services

the check request policy to require that computer-related subscriptions over $3,000 should go through
the Procurement process or a justification memo meeting policy requirements must be provided.

*This total does not include recommendations included in the Audit of Westside Purple Line Extension Section 2- Modification No. 52, Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail
Operational Safety, and Review of Metro Rail Services Disruptions, as the management response and/or estimated completion dates are still pending. However, Operations has
hired consultants to assist in addressing the most critical elements of the Review of Metro Safety Culture and Rail Operational Safety.
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